BASTROP COUNTY EMERGENCY FOOD PANTRY & SUPPORT CENTER INC

Bastrop County, Texas

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR BASTROP COUNTY EMERGENCY FOOD PANTRY

This project is being supported, by funds

allocated to the Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc under the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) by the U.S. Department of the Treasury.



RFPs to be received on:

November 8, 2024 at 3:00 PM CST

Prepared By: Paradise Engineers LLC

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Cover Letter/Notice Request for Proposals (RFP) – Construction Services

Date: September 30, 2024

Re: Solicitation of Construction Services for the **Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry** funded with Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) allocated under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)

Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc has received an allocation of Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) funded by the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) and is issuing a Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit responses for a construction contract. The RFP solicitation is to assist the **Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc** in providing construction services for projects funded with its allocation of ARPA funds.

The Sole Point of Contact for this solicitation may provide information regarding this RFP. Refer to the Schedule of Events and Selection Summary in Section 1 of this document for response details.

Respondent is responsible to ensure that their RFP response is received in a timely manner<u>and that</u> <u>it contains all elements of the RFP including all required forms and any addendums issued</u>. Respondent should complete the Solicitation Response Cover Sheet/Acknowledgement of Addenda/Submission Checklist contained in **Attachment A** and all other requirements identified in the RFP. RFP responses received after the deadline will not be opened and therefore not evaluated or considered for award, regardless of whether or not the delay was outside the control of the submitting provider. **Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc** reserves the right to negotiate with any and all service providers submitting timely responses, to reject any and all bids, and to select multiple respondents if it deems and/or desires to do so.

Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer. Minority Business Enterprises, Small Business Enterprises, Women Business Enterprises, and Labor Surplus Area firms are encouraged to submit proposals.

Sincerely,

Tresha Silva Executive Director Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry

TABLE OF CONTENTS	PAGE
SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF EVENTS AND SELECTION SUMMARY	4
1.1 SCHEDULE OF EVENTS	4
1.2 SELECTION OF RESPONDENT(S)	6
SECTION 2 – INTRODUCTION	7
2.1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SCOPE OF WORK (SOW)	7
2.2 CONSIDERATION OF AWARD	7
2.3 CONTRACT AWARD	7
2.4 TERM OF CONTRACT	7
2.5 BID ACCEPTANCE	7
2.6 REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	9
2.7 PROHIBITED COMMUNICATION	9
2.8 ALTERATIONS, MODIFICATIONS, AND WITHDRAWALS	9
2.9 TERMINATION CONDITIONS	9
2.10 TRANSITIONAL PERIOD	11
SECTION 3 – SCOPE OF WORK/TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	11
3.1 MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS	11
3.2 SCOPE OF SERVICES	11
3.3 KEY TASKS	12
3.4 TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS	13
3.5 TERMS AND CONDITIONS	19
SECTION 4 – EVALUATION CRITERIA	20
4.1 RESPONSIVENESS OF QUALIFICATION SUBMISSION	20
4.2 FINANCIAL STABILITY OF RESPONDENT	20
4.3 TECHNICAL COMPETENCE REQUIREMENTS	20
4.4 EVALUATION MATRIX	21
SECTION 5 – SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS	21
5.1 STATEMENT OF INTEREST	21
5.2 EXPERIENCE AND RELEVANT QUALIFICATIONS	21
5.3 CAPACITY TO PERFORM	22

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	5.4 FINANCIAL STABILITY	23
	5.5 LEGAL ACTIONS	23
	5.6 PRICING	23
LI	IST OF EXHIBITS	24
	EXHIBIT A: PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK	25
	EXHIBIT B: REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS	27
	EXHIBIT C: PREVAILING WAGE DECISION	40
	EXHIBIT D: PLANS, REPORTS & OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION	41
LI	IST OF REQUIRED INFORMATION – ATTACHMENTS A THROUGH L	42
	ATTACHMENT A: SOLICITATION RESPONSE COVER SHEET/ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS & CHECKLIST	43
	ATTACHMENT B: PRICING SHEET	45
	ATTACHMENT C: FEDERAL DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION STATUS CERTIFICATION	46
	ATTACHMENT D: CUSTOMER/CLIENT REFERENCES	48
	ATTACHMENT E: INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	51
	ATTACHMENT F: PERFORMANCE and PAYMENT BONDS	52
	ATTACHMENT G: ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	54
	ATTACHMENT H: CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONAIRE (FORM CIQ)	55
	ATTACHMENT I: DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES SF-LLL CERTIFICATION	58
	ATTACHMENT J: BIDDER'S CERTIFICATION	60
	ATTACHMENT K: NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT	61
	ATTACHEMTN L – SAMPLE CONTRACT	62

SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF EVENTS AND SELECTION SUMMARY

1.1 SCHEDULE OF EVENTS – ALL DATES ARE TENTATIVE

- 1.1.1 The City/County, hereinafter called "Entity", reserves the right to change dates at any time. At the sole discretion of the Entity, events listed in Section 1 are subject to scheduling changes and cancellation. The Entity will make public any changes to the stated schedule.
- 1.1.2 All requests, questions, or other communication about this solicitation shall be made in writing and addressed to the Entity's Sole Point of Contact listed in Section 1. Only the Sole Point of Contact may be contacted regarding required elements for this RFP.

<u>PAG</u>E

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS BASTROP COUNTY EMERGENCY FOOD PANTRY

_				
Return quest	ions and responses to the Sole P	oint of Co	ntact identif	ied below:
NAME:	Paradise Engineers (Shiva Sh	iankar)	PHONE:	919-917-6675
ADDRESS:	13423 Blanco Road #889		EMAIL:	sshankar@paradise-engineers.com
	San Antonio, TX 78216			
Responses fo	or this RFP must be submitted via	a email to tl	he Sole Poin	t of Contact identified above.
		RFP SCHE	DULE	
RFP ISSUE DATE:		September, 30, 2024		
RESPONDENT QUESTIONS DUE BY:		October 25, 2024 – 5:00 PM CST		
QUESTIONS ANSWERED BY:		November 1, 2024 – 5:00 PM CST		
MANDATORY	PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE:	October 14, 2024 – 10:00 AM CST		
		Virtual – Contact the Sole Point of Contact identified above		
The Entity sha	all reject responses submitted			
by firms that do not attend the mandatory				
pre-proposal c	conference.			
RFP RESPON	SE DUE DATE:	Novembe	er 8, 2024 – :	3:00 PM CST
ESTIMATED AWARD DATE:		Novembe	er 29, 2024	

1.2 SELECTION OF RESPONDENT(S)

- 1.2.1 The Entity intends to select Respondent(s) that best meet the needs of the Entity and that provide the best overall value. The Entity reserves the right to award <u>multiple</u> contracts from the finalist pool of successful Respondent(s). Respondents will be rated and ranked according to the evaluation criteria set forth below. The Entity intends to enter into negotiations with the top-ranked Respondent (i.e., the most highly qualified) and attempt to negotiate a fair and reasonable price; if negotiations fail, the Entity shall formally end negotiations with that respondent and attempt to negotiate with the next most highly qualified provider. The Entity shall proceed in like manner until it has contracted with a sufficient number of providers to respond to the identified scope of work.
- 1.2.2 The Entity reserves the right to check references on any projects performed by the Respondent, whether provided by the Respondent or known by the Entity.
- 1.2.3 The Entity is not required to accept the lowest cost proposal.
- 1.2.4 The Entity may make such investigation as deemed necessary to determine the ability of the Respondent to perform the work, and the Respondent shall furnish to the Entity all such information by the date specified by the Entity.
- 1.2.5 The Entity may conduct such investigations as it deems necessary or appropriate to assist in the evaluation of any RFP response and to establish the responsibility, qualifications, and financial ability of the Respondent, their proposed subcontractors, and other persons or organizations submitted within a Respondent's response to do the work to the Entity's satisfaction within the prescribed time.
- 1.2.6 The Entity reserves the right to conduct interviews of short-listed Respondent(s) prior to making a final selection.
- 1.2.7 The Entity reserves the right to contact references as deemed necessary to complete its analysis.

See SECTION 4 – EVALUATION CRITERIA, for additional information on how Respondents will be evaluated and selected.

2.1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SCOPE OF WORK (SOW) – SEE SECTION 3 AND EXHIBIT A FOR SOW DETAILS

The Entity is seeking construction contractor(s) experienced in providing demolition, new construction & rehabilitation services. General details for the project include:

- 2.1.1 **Project Name: Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry**
- 2.1.2 **Project Location: 1201 Pine Street & 806 Fayette Street, Bastrop TX 78602**
- 2.1.3 **General Description:** The total project site is 0.318 acres (13,860 SF) and currently contains 3 existing buildings and a woodshed occupied by the Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry. The 3 existing buildings are intended to be demolished and replaced by a 2-story, 9,217 SF new construction building that will serve as the new home for the Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center. The project scope also includes the remodel of the existing building at 806 Fayette Street.
- 2.1.4 **Items that are NOT a part of this scope:** There is one existing mobile homes located at 1205 Pine Street and will be removed prior to construction. The outdoor freezer and cooler & associated foundation work will be installed prior to construction
- 2.1.5 **Time of Work:** Work on this project may be performed Monday-Friday during the hours of 7 am to 6 pm. Work may be performed on weekends.
- 2.1.6 The scope of work includes all labor, materials, goods and/or services necessary to complete the project. See **SECTION 3 and EXHIBIT A** for detailed scope of work. The respondent shall submit a written copy of all warranty information prior to final acceptance by Entity.

2.2 CONSIDERATION OF AWARD

To be considered for award, respondents must adhere to the requirements, when applicable to Contractors, as set forth in Exhibit B, including the ARPA Terms and Conditions, Part 200 of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirement for Federal Awards contained within this solicitation and provide all other required information and documentation as set forth in this solicitation.

2.3 CONTRACT AWARD

The Entity may award a Firm Fixed Price Contract. A Respondent's proposal must be responsive to this solicitation and include all required documents as instructed in the solicitation and listed in the Solicitation Response Cover Sheet/Acknowledgement of Addenda/Submission Checklist (Attachment A).

2.4 TERM OF CONTRACT

The contract shall be effective upon date of execution (signed by the Entity designee.) The contract term is projected for a term of (420) calendar days after the Notice to Proceed (NTP) for construction is issued. Upon expiration of the initial term, the contract may, at the sole discretion of the Entity, be renewed via an approved Contract Change Order with the same terms and conditions. All work on this project shall be completed and accepted by the Entity no later than March 31, 2026. A sample contract is available for review at Appendix I.

2.5 BID ACCEPTANCE

2.5.1 Proposals must be received, time stamped or otherwise acknowledged before the specified hour and date. Late submittals <u>WILL NOT</u> be considered under any circumstances. The Entity will not be held

responsible for any solicitation response that is mishandled prior to receipt by the Entity. The Entity will not be responsible for any technical issues that result in late delivery, inappropriately identified documents, or other submission error that may lead to disqualification (including substantive or administrative) or nonreceipt of the respondent's response.

- 2.5.2 The Entity reserves the right to accept or reject any and all proposals, to accept any proposal deemed advantageous and to waive irregularity in the proposals. By submitting a response, the Respondent acknowledges and will adhere to all specifications as stated within this procurement packet.
- 2.5.3 Proposals CANNOT be altered or amended after the due date. Any alterations made before the due time must be initialed by Respondent or authorized agent. No response may be withdrawn after due date without approval and based on a written acceptable reason.
- 2.5.4 The Entity reserves the right to revise or amend the specifications prior to the due date. Such revisions or amendments, if any, will be announced by amendments or addendums to these specifications. Copies of such amendments or addendums so issued will be posted to the Entity's bidding websites. If Respondent demonstrates just reason for a change, the Entity must have at least five (5) working days' notice prior to submission due date.
- 2.5.5 In the event that Respondent finds discrepancies in or omissions from the specifications or other documents or be in doubt as to their meaning, Respondent should at once notify the Entity Sole Point of Contact and obtain clarification prior to submitting a response.
- 2.5.6 All Respondents must meet or exceed the minimum specifications to be considered a valid response. The Entity reserves the right to accept or reject all or any part of any response, waive minor technicalities and award the contract either to the lowest responsible Respondent or to the Respondent who provides goods or services at the best value for the Entity.
- 2.5.7 If a response contains proprietary information, the Respondent must declare such information as proprietary if Respondent does not want information to become public. The Entity will honor specific requests for confidentiality for information of a proprietary nature only to the extent allowed by law if clearly marked by Respondent as "Proprietary" or "Confidential."
- 2.5.8 The Respondent agrees to protect the Entity from claims involving infringement of patents or copyrights.
- 2.5.9 There is no guarantee a contract will be awarded. The Entity reserves the right to cancel this RFP at any time.
- 2.5.10 All proposals become public documents and are subject to public review (upon request and as allowed by law). The submission of an RFP response will constitute representation by the Respondent that it understands and has complied with the requirements of the RFP. Submission of a response indicates the RFP information provided was sufficient in scope and detail to convey understanding of anticipated terms and conditions for performance of the work.
- 2.5.11 RFP Respondents assume all costs of preparation of the proposal. RFP responses become the property of the Entity.

2.6 REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

- 2.6.1 The Entity will allow written questions and requests for clarification of this solicitation. Questions must be submitted by email to the Sole Point of Contact listed in Section 1 above. Respondents' names will be removed from questions in any responses released.
- 2.6.2 Questions shall be submitted in the format shown below. Submissions that deviate from this format may not be accepted:

- 2.6.2.1 Identifying Solicitation Number, if applicable
- 2.6.2.2 Page Number
- 2.6.2.3 Section Number, if applicable
- 2.6.2.4 Paragraph Number, if applicable
- 2.6.2.5 Text of passage being questioned
- 2.6.2.6 Question
- 2.6.3 Questions or other written requests for clarification must be received by the Sole Point of Contact by the deadline set forth in Section 1. However, the Entity, at its sole discretion, may respond to questions or other written requests received after the deadline.

2.7 PROHIBITED COMMUNICATION

On issuance of this solicitation, except for the written inquiries described in Section 2.6 above, the Entity, its representative(s), or partners will not answer any questions or otherwise discuss the contents of this solicitation with any potential respondent or their representative(s). This restriction does not preclude discussions between affected parties for the purposes of conducting business unrelated to this solicitation. Failure to comply with these requirements may result in disqualification of respondent's solicitation response.

2.8 ALTERATIONS, MODIFICATIONS, AND WITHDRAWALS

Prior to the solicitation submission deadline, a Respondent may: (1) withdraw its solicitation response by submitting a written request to the Sole Point of Contact identified; or (2) modify its solicitation response by submitting a written amendment to the Sole Point of Contact identified in Section 1. The Entity may request solicitation response modifications at any time.

2.9 TERMINATION CONDITIONS

2.9.1 FAILURE TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT

Should the bidder, to whom the contract is awarded, fail to enter into a contract within twenty-one (21) days, Sundays and holidays excepted, the Entity may then, at its option, retain the bidder's bid deposit/bond (if required) and accept the bid of the next lowest responsible bidder.

2.9.2 **DISPUTE RESOLUTION**

Contract documents shall provide that disputes arising under the contract shall be submitted to a process of resolution pursuant to alternative dispute resolution practices, such as mediation, binding arbitration, or non-binding arbitration pursuant to industry standards, prior to being submitted to a court for adjudication. It is understood that the Entity shall have the right to request mediation if the services being provided are deemed deficient in any way.

2.9.3 ACQUISITION, MERGER, SALE AND/OR TRANSFER OF BUSINESS, ETC.

It is understood by all parties that if, during the life of the contract, the contractor disposes of his/her business concern by acquisition, merger, sale, and or/transfer or by any means convey his/her interest(s) to another party, all obligations are transferred to that new party. In this event, the new vendor will be required to submit all documentation/legal instruments that were required in the original bid/contract. Any change shall be approved by the Entity, who retains the right to reject the transfer of the contract.

2.9.4 TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

- 2.9.4.1 For Cause: The resulting Contract may be terminated by the Entity for cause, including any nonperformance by the Contractor; failure of the Contractor to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under the Contract; or violation of any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of the contract, upon thirty (30) days' written notice to Contractor including a statement of the reasons, therefore. The determination of the Entity as to the cause of termination and the appropriateness thereof shall be final and binding upon both Entity and Contractor. Cause for termination shall include any material failure by Contractor to comply with any term of the Contract.
 - 2.9.4.1.1 In such event, all finished or unfinished services, documents, data, maps, studies, surveys, drawings, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the Contractor under the Contract shall, at the option of the Entity, become its property, and the Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work satisfactorily completed hereunder.
 - 2.9.4.1.2 Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the Entity for damages sustained by the Entity by virtue of any breach of the Contract by the Contractor, and the Entity may withhold any payments to the Contractor for the purposes of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due the Entity from the Contractor is determined.
 - 2.9.4.1.3 The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold the Entity harmless from any liability to subcontractors or suppliers concerning payment for work performed or goods supplied arising out of the lawful termination of the contract by the Entity under this provision.
 - 2.9.4.1.4 In case of default by the Contractor, the Entity may procure the goods or services from other sources and hold the Contractor responsible for any excess cost.
 - 2.9.4.1.5 Continuation of the terms of the Contract beyond the fiscal year is contingent on availability of funds in the following year's budget. In the event of unavailability of such funds, the Entity reserves the right to cancel the Contract.
 - 2.9.4.1.6 If the Contract is terminated for cause, excluding funding discontinuance or disapproval, Contractor shall have the right to attempt to cure its failure during the thirty-day (30-day) period prior to termination to the satisfaction of the Entity at the Entity's sole discretion.
- 2.9.4.2 For Convenience of the Entity: The Entity may terminate the Contract at any time by giving at least thirty (30) days' notice in writing to the Contractor. If the Contractor is terminated by the Entity as provided herein, the Contractor will be paid an amount which bears the same ratio to the total compensation as the services actually performed bear to the total services of the Contractor covered by the Contract, less payments of compensation previously made. If the Contract is terminated due to the fault of the Contractor, Section 2.9.4 above, relative to termination, shall apply.

2.9.5 POST EXPIRATION AND TERMINATION PROCEDURES

Upon expiration or in the event of a prior termination, all remaining and unspent grant funds, shall immediately become the sole and separate property of the Entity and the Contractor shall perform all acts and execute all instruments necessary to transfer and assign such funds to the Entity. All

finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, reports, and work products prepared by the Contractor under the Contract or with grant funds shall, at the option of the Entity, become Entity's property.

2.10 TRANSITIONAL PERIOD

In the event services are terminated by contract expiration or by voluntary termination by either the Contractor or the Entity, the Contractor shall continue all terms and conditions of said Contract for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days at the Entity's request.

SECTION 3 – SCOPE OF WORK/TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

3.1 MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

- 3.1.1 The selected Respondent shall have no convictions or civil judgments preceding nor thereafter this solicitation rendered against Respondent for 1) commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 2) violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property.
- 3.1.2 The selected Respondent shall not ever have been indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated above.
- 3.1.3 Where applicable, Respondent's staff must meet and maintain current certifications and or licensure requirements as mandated by state law or the appropriate licensing authority.
- 3.1.4 Respondent must not be debarred at the time of response submission, and prior to award of a contract, the System for Award Management (SAM.gov) and the Texas Comptroller's website will be checked to ensure Respondent is not debarred. If the Respondent is debarred, the Respondent's proposal will not be evaluated.

3.2 SCOPE OF SERVICES

The required services shall be performed in accordance with Key Tasks as described below and attached Exhibits:

- 3.2.1 Exhibit A: Project Scope of Work
- 3.2.2 Exhibit B: Required Contract Provisions
- 3.2.3 Exhibit C: Prevailing Wage Decision
- 3.2.4 Exhibit D: Plans, Reports & Other Relevant Information

The Entity expects selected Respondent to have knowledge and experience of general construction policies, procedures, and guidelines.

3.3 KEY TASKS

- 3.3.1 Management of all construction phases (specific to the construction scope of work) to include but not limited to site prep/grading, foundation (including all underground plumbing, electrical and gas line), demolition, lead paint/asbestos abatement, dry-in (framing, exterior doors, windows, roofing, weatherization and exterior siding/masonry), rough-in (plumbing, mechanical, electrical and gas), insulation, drywall, interior trim/doors, painting, carpet and flooring, cabinets and countertop, finish (electrical, plumbing, mechanical and gas), hookup and punch list.
- 3.3.2 Maintain a pool of general/subcontractors, Architectural/Engineering (A/E) Firms, and other trades adequate to complete construction adhering to Entity's requirements and time constraints identified in this document.
- 3.3.3 Provide timely payments to sub-consultants, general/subcontractors, trades, etc.
- 3.3.4 Obtain or ensure that all necessary permits to perform demolition and/or construction activities as required, and Certificates of Compliance (as applicable), are issued and properly documented.
- 3.3.5 Provide a warranty on all completed construction. At a minimum, a one-year warranty for workmanship and materials and a 10-year warranty for structure, and an appliance warranty from the manufacturer shall be provided.
- 3.3.6 Perform periodic monitoring of construction during all construction phases. Respondents shall provide an assigned superintendent at each project site and notify the Entity of the assignment or reassignment of superintendent within forty-eight (48) hours. The Entity reserves the right to require a superintendent to be on-site during all construction and establish a maximum ratio of projects for each superintendent.
- 3.3.7 Participate in progress inspections performed by the Entity's inspectors (or assignees) to ensure compliance with construction requirements, applicable building codes, zoning requirements, plan specifications and minimum structural elevation per the Federal Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA) Elevation Certificate (if applicable).
- 3.3.8 When applicable, provide wage rate documentation (or certified payroll) on a weekly basis. Allow access to the site to interview employees and provide photographs of required on-site signage (location to be determined) per requirements of Texas Prevailing Wage.
- 3.3.9 Provide excellent customer service for others impacted during construction activities. Firm shall be responsive to requests and communicate on a regular basis with the Entity; coordinate relocation issues such as utility connects/disconnects, schedules, and storage; and ensure that those impacted by construction are fully informed of the construction process.
- 3.3.10 Provide and maintain all original and copies of supporting documentation to include, but not limited to, construction draws, liens, releases from vendors, subcontractors, and suppliers.
- 3.3.11 Furnish progress reporting as determined or requested by the Entity.
- 3.3.12 Coordinate with local governmental jurisdictions, homeowner associations, and other jurisdictions as appropriate to complete projects.

3.3.13 Support and assist the Entity during state/federal monitoring or auditing activities, including providing financial information, reports, site visits, and other requests that may be required.

3.4 TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS

The selected Respondent shall provide construction services including, but not limited to, the following technical requirements:

3.4.1 **Preconstruction Services**

During the phase of preconstruction services, the following activities are performed:

- 3.4.1.1 Procure in advance or establish reliable supply chains for materials, equipment, supplies, and appurtenances with long lead items.
- 3.4.1.2 Perform procurement of early trade work.
- 3.4.1.3 Submit sample boards of materials (i.e., cabinets, carpet, hardware, paint, etc.) for review and approval by the Entity.
- 3.4.1.4 Prepare and maintain a detailed schedule.
- 3.4.1.5 Work collaboratively with design team and review drawings for submittal to the Entity for final approval.

3.4.2 Construction Services

During the phase of construction services, the following activities are performed:

- 3.4.2.1 Respondents shall meet with assigned Entity contact (or assignee) to review selections of construction materials.
- 3.4.2.2 Respondents will be responsible for coordinating with appropriate departments for shutoff and timely reconnection of all utilities. Respondents shall be responsible for managing all utility-related issues associated with demolition and/or construction.
- 3.4.2.3 Respondents are responsible for demolition of damaged structure, if specified in the scope of work. All demolition activities and disposal of demolition/construction debris must follow applicable local, state, and federal guidelines, laws and regulations.
- 3.4.2.4 Respondents shall obtain or ensure that all necessary permits for demolition and construction are issued and properly documented, Certificates of Occupancy are issued and properly documented, and provide foundation location and as-built surveys to confirm that construction is compliant with elevation and setback building line requirements.
- 3.4.2.5 Respondents shall provide construction services in accordance with the Entity's building codes and within the prescribed construction timelines and approved schedule.
- 3.4.2.6 Respondents are responsible for performing abatement activities per the Asbestos assessment as included in the project scope of work. All work must be properly documented, and proper clearances obtained prior to re-occupation of the building.
- 3.4.2.7 Respondents shall provide administrative, management, and related services to coordinate scheduled activities and responsibilities of their general contractors, subcontractors, and trades with each other to manage construction schedule. Respondents are allowed to self-perform construction and are responsible for coordinating and scheduling their own construction services.

- 3.4.2.8 Respondents shall visit and thoroughly inspect the project sites and any structures or other manmade features to be modified.
- 3.4.2.9 Respondents shall coordinate and manage the scope of work to be performed by their subcontractors through final acceptance, including punch-list work. Respondents shall be responsible for keeping the services on schedule and ensuring that the subcontractors furnish materials and perform work according to the approved scope of work and construction plans.
- 3.4.2.10 Respondents shall have the authority over their general contractors/ subcontractors to require prompt execution of the work and to give instructions to require corrective actions, whenever such action may be necessary in its opinion to ensure proper execution of the Contract Documents and/or to protect the interests of the Entity.
- 3.4.2.11 As requested by the Entity, Respondents shall provide routine reports regarding quality control inspections to ensure progress and quality of construction, adherence to schedule, and conformance with applicable construction standards.
- 3.4.2.12 Respondents shall coordinate their trades, subcontractors, and other construction personnel to ensure that the quantity, quality, fitness, and progress of the work is in compliance with the Contract requirements. All work is subject to the final review of the Entity, or assignee. The Entity will not routinely require prior approval of these actions but reserves the right to review and approve at its sole discretion.
- 3.4.2.13 The Respondent shall be responsible for all material testing requirements as outlined in the Geotechnical Report. All test results and related documentation must be submitted to the Engineer for review and approval.

3.4.3 Elevation Services

No elevation services are anticipated at this time; however, new construction projects must meet all applicable requirements regarding location of structures within floodplains.

3.4.4 Scheduling

During the phase of construction services, the following activities are performed:

- 3.4.4.1 The selected Firm(s) will generate and maintain a master schedule (schedule of all assigned construction sites whether one or more than one location is involved) showing average duration for performing activities at the assigned sites. This schedule will break down activities from work order assignment and construction milestones, through Certificate of Occupancy (COO), final inspection, and close out. This schedule should also include the Entity's activities which potentially may impact the schedule.
- 3.4.4.2 The selected Firm(s) shall update the master schedule weekly to determine revised durations on the active construction projects. The schedule will also indicate any delays and recommend actions to mitigate the delays and implement approved schedule recovery measures.
- 3.4.4.3 The selected Firm(s) will be responsible for performing regular routine daily/weekly monitoring of construction; however, the Entity, or assignee, will perform milestone inspections required for compliance.
- 3.4.4.4 The selected firm(s) shall conduct weekly virtual meetings with the client and project manager to provide comprehensive project status updates, review ongoing tasks, discuss upcoming milestones, and address any coordination or technical issues. The meetings will also serve as a platform for ensuring alignment on project timelines, resource allocation, and any necessary adjustments to the project scope or schedule.

3.4.5 Environmental, Health and Safety

During the phase of construction services, the following activities are performed:

- 3.4.5.1 The Firm shall have detailed procedures addressing environmental risks and safety hazards and provide mitigation methods. The Firm shall identify and ensure that all Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) required for performing services is utilized.
- 3.4.5.2 All health and safety complaints must be addressed immediately, and the Entity must be notified of the complaints and proposed resolutions within twenty-four (24) hours.
- 3.4.5.3 Investigation, removal, and disposal of all hazardous materials shall be addressed in accordance with all applicable construction/environmental and any other federal, state, and local laws and regulations.
- 3.4.5.4 All construction activities shall be performed in compliance with applicable Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) safety regulations and other applicable laws.

3.4.6 Prevailing Wage/Labor Compliance

During the phase of construction services, the following activities are performed:

- 3.4.6.1 This project is subject to the **Texas Prevailing Wage Rates** as described in Texas Government Code, Chapter 2258. In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. **See Exhibit C** for the prevailing wages applicable to this project.
- 3.4.6.2 Workers employed by or on behalf of the Entity shall be paid (1) not less than the general prevailing wage of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which the work is performed, and (2) not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for legal holiday and overtime work.
- 3.4.6.3 Section 2258.023 Penalty A contractor or subcontractor who violates this section shall pay penalty to the Entity on whose behalf the contract is made. A public body awarding a contract shall specify this penalty in the contract.
- 3.4.6.4 Section 2258.024 Records A contractor and subcontractor shall keep a record showing (1) the name and occupation of each worker employed by the contractor or subcontractor in the construction of the public work; and (2) the actual per diem wages paid to each worker. The record shall be open at all reasonable hours to inspection by the officers and agents of the Entity.

3.4.7 <u>Closeout</u>

During the close out phase, the following activities are performed:

- 3.4.7.1 Respondent shall obtain a COO (when applicable) and provide a copy of the certificate to the Entity.
- 3.4.7.2 Respondent shall transfer all operations and maintenance manuals, keys, warranty information, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents as directed.
- 3.4.7.3 Respondents shall provide all preconstruction and construction records and files in the prescribed format within seven (7) calendar days of the approved final inspection.

3.4.8 Work Orders

During the term of any contract awarded, the Entity may request the Firm to perform certain tasks as described in the scope, subject to a specific work order authorization. All work authorizations shall be in writing, signed by all parties, and shall include a scope of services, a list of tasks to be performed, a time schedule, a list of deliverables and such other information or special conditions as may be necessary for the work requested.

3.4.9 Inspections and Payment for Construction Services

During the phase of construction services, the following activities apply:

- 3.4.9.1 Payments will be made on a monthly basis, with the contractor submitting invoices that reflect the percentage of work completed during the invoicing period. Payment amounts will be proportional to the percentage of the total project completed as verified by the Entity. In general, a progress inspection can be assumed complete if tasks pertaining to that corresponding percentage of the construction value has been completed in-place. Inspection will not be scheduled for incomplete or uninstalled work, or for work that requires a code inspection, and the code inspection has not been completed and approved by the Entity. Inspections are also performed to verify that construction is performed in accordance with approved plans and all applicable construction codes, standards, and specifications. All components must be installed without visible flaws in workmanship and all municipal inspections and the engineer's inspection requirements applicable to the construction must be completed and approved. <u>A ten percent (10%) retainage will be withheld on each payment that would be reimbursed</u>.
- 3.4.9.2 Firm shall submit a request for payment upon completion of each milestone as described in the executed construction contract document. Deliverables will be considered complete only upon inspection and written acceptance by the Entity. Each request for payment shall include deliverable(s) completed and the price for each. No charges may be billed unless such costs are explicitly included in the construction contract.
- 3.4.9.3 The selected Firm(s) are eligible for final payment once a COO is provided, and the construction passes the final inspection performed by the Entity. The final inspection is complete when all items on the scope of work have been completed, all mechanical systems are working properly, all interior and exterior electrical systems are working, all plumbing systems are working and draining, and all other systems or appurtenances installed or repaired as part of this scope are working or completed.
- 3.4.9.4 Firm(s) are eligible for the 10% retainage payment thirty (30) days after passing final inspection and completion of all punch list items. If determined necessary by the Entity, proof of payment to subcontractors may be requested.

3.4.10 Record Keeping

During the phase of construction services, the following activities are performed:

- 3.4.10.1 Respondents shall provide, enter, or upload all documentation, communications, and records including all permits, certifications, warranties, and approvals regarding all assigned projects as instructed by the Entity within two (2) days of receipt or occurrence.
- 3.4.10.2 Respondents shall maintain records of principal work layout lines, elevations of the bottom of footings, floor levels, and key site elevations to include utility layouts (complete with depth of burial), and as-built construction drawings certified by a licensed surveyor or Engineer as applicable.
- 3.4.10.3 Respondents shall document all communications regarding the construction status and any other issues.
- 3.4.10.4 Respondents shall maintain records of all events that occur at the job site or elsewhere, which affect, or may be expected to affect the quality, scope, or progress of the services.
- 3.4.10.5 All records shall be retained for a period of **five (5) years** following the closeout of the Entity's federal grant.
- 3.4.10.6 The selected Firm(s) shall support and assist the Entity pertaining to close out of the federal grant, including financial reconciliation, reporting, record keeping, and achievement of eligible activities and services.

3.4.11 Insurance

- 3.4.11.1 An original, certified copy of an Insurance Certificate listing the Entity as additional insured, must be submitted with the Respondent's submittal (see Attachment E for requirements). The successful Respondent will be required to maintain at all times during performance of the Contract, the insurance detailed below.
- 3.4.11.2 Workers' Compensation Insurance
- 3.4.11.3 Employers' Liability Insurance
- 3.4.11.4 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance
- 3.4.11.5 Excess Liability Insurance, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance, Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance

3.4.12 Builder's Risk Insurance

Selected Firm(s) will be required to carry Builder's Risk Insurance in an amount sufficient to ensure completion of the project scope. Firm(s) will be required to provide evidence of Builder's Risk coverage prior to Contract execution, and no later than fifteen (15) days of request.

3.4.13 Performance, and Payment Bonds (See Attachment F)

3.4.13.1 The selected Firm(s) will not be required to provide a Bid Bond in accordance with information contained in Attachment F.

- 3.4.13.2 The selected Firm(s) will be required to maintain Performance and Payment Bonds in accordance with information contained in Attachment F. In no event shall the bond requirements be for less than one hundred percent (100%) of a Firm's amount under the contract at any given time. All bonds must be issued by a bonding agent with at least an "A" rating, and the bonding companies must be listed in the Department of the Treasury's Listing of Certified Companies. The bonds must be submitted within fifteen (15) days of the request.
- 3.4.13.3 A Payment Bond on the part of the contractor for one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price is required. A Payment Bond is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment as required by law of all persons supplying labor and/or material in the execution of the work provided for in the contract. Required Payment Bond(s) must be filed within fifteen (15) days from the date of the Notice of Award.
- 3.4.13.4 A Performance Bond on the part of the contractor for one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price for contracts that are greater than One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000) is required. A Performance Bond is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's obligations under such contract.

3.4.14 Use of Historically Underutilized Businesses

In accordance with 2 CFR 200 § 200.321, the selected Respondent(s) performing procurement of subcontractors shall take all necessary affirmative steps to ensure that small, minority, and women owned business enterprises (SMWBEs), and labor surplus area Respondents are used when possible. The Respondent(s) should also actively take steps to encourage proposals from historically underutilized businesses (HUBs). Respondent(s) is required to comply and use methods described within the contract provisions (Exhibit B of this document) and may be required to take the following outreach efforts and actions:

- 3.4.14.1 Placement on Bidders' lists;
- 3.4.14.2 Ensuring that solicitations are mailed to HUBs and (Minority and Women Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) firms;
- 3.4.14.3 Allocating requirements into smaller amounts, when feasible, to permit maximum participation;
- 3.4.14.4 Establishing delivery requirements, when feasible, for compatibility with capability of the above-listed type businesses and firms;
- 3.4.14.5 Using the services of the Small Business Administration; and
- 3.4.14.6 When subcontracts are considered, requiring the prime contractor to take these steps above (1-5) for the subcontracts.
- 3.4.14.7 Notwithstanding the fact that no contracting goals are established, the Respondent(s) is expected to provide statistics on contract awards to the Entity upon request.
- 3.4.14.8 If no available HUB vendors are found, the Respondent(s) should retain appropriate documentation in the project procurement file of the efforts made and measure taken to secure a HUB and MWBE vendors.
- 3.4.14.9 Minority-owned businesses from public and private sector entities from Minority Business Development Agency (MBDA) centers:

3.4.14.10 To the fullest extent possible and to ensure compliance with 2 CFR 200 requirements, the firm selected should include as part of their listing of solicited bidders, the list of MBDA below. The client must also ensure that HUBs/SWMBEs closest to them are included as respondents to the bid and/or solicitation package.

LIST OF MBDA CENTERS		
Dallas MBDA Business Center - 214-920-2436		
Website: <u>https://www.mbdadfw.com</u>		
Email: admin1@mbdadallas.com		
Dallas Fort Worth WBC - 214-572-9452		
Website: https://womensbusinesscenterdfw.com/		
Email: <u>wbcdfw@liftfund.com</u>		
Houston MBDA Business Center - 713-718-8974		
Website: https://www.mbda.gov/business-center/houston-mbda-business-center		
Email: <u>MBDA@hccs.edu</u>		
WBEA Women's Business Center - 713-681-9232		
Website: https://www.wbea-texas.org/womens-business-center		
Email: <u>wbc@wbea-texas.org</u>		
El Paso MBDA Business Center - 915-351-6232		
Website: https://www.mbda.gov/business-center/el-paso-mbda-business-center		
Email: <u>treed@ephcc.org</u>		
San Antonio MBDA Business Center - 210-458-2480		
Website: https://www.mbda.gov/business-center/san-antonio-mbda-business-center		
Email: <u>orestes.hubbard@utsa.edu</u>		
LiftFund Women's Business Center - 888-215-2373 ext. 3000		
Website: https://womensbusinesscentersa.com/		
Email: <u>wbc@liftfund.com</u>		

3.5 Terms and Conditions

- 3.5.1 **Indemnity Clause** The Respondent agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Entity and its officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims, causes or action, and damages of every kind, for injury to or death of any person and damages, to property arising out of or in connection with the work done by Respondent under this contract, and including acts or omissions of the Entity or its officers, agents, or employees in connection with said contract.
- 3.5.2 **Equal Opportunity Employer** The successful Respondent shall warrant and agree that he/she is an Equal Opportunity Employer. Should complaints of any form of discrimination, either in dispensation of the service, or within company hiring policies be substantiated, this contract may be terminated immediately.

- 3.5.3 **Assignment** The successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer this contract without prior written consent of the Entity.
- 3.5.4 **Contractor's Responsibility** At the time of the proposal response due date, each Respondent shall be presumed to have inspected the site(s) (if applicable) and to have read and be thoroughly familiar with the scope requirements. The failure or omission of any Respondent to examine any form, instrument, document, or site shall in no way relieve any Respondent from any obligation in respect to this RFP.
- 3.5.5 **Compliance with Laws** The Respondent agrees to comply with the requirements of Section 603 of the Act, regulations adopted by Treasury pursuant to Section 603(f) of the Act, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing.
 - 3.5.5.1 Additionally, all applicable local government codes for the State of Texas also apply to this contract. All equipment, supplies and work furnished under this contract shall comply with applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations. Respondent shall obtain and pay for such permits and inspections as are required for the legal performance of this work, unless otherwise specified. Respondent shall comply with all federal and state laws and Entity's ordinances and codes applicable to the Respondent's operation under this contract. These specifications and the contract resulting here shall be fully governed by the laws of the State of Texas and shall be fully performable in City of Bastrop, Texas, where venue for any proceeding arising hereunder will lie.
- 3.5.6 **Silence of Specifications** The apparent silence of specifications as to any detail, or the apparent omission from it or a detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practice is to prevail and that only material and workmanship of the finest quality shall be used. All interpretations of specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement. The Respondent should request clarification from the Entity as specified in this document.
- 3.5.7 **Severability** If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in these requirements or specifications shall be held invalid, such holding shall not affect the remaining portions of these requirements and specifications; and it is hereby declared that such remaining portions would have been included in these requirements and specifications as though the invalid portion had been omitted.

SECTION 4 – EVALUATION CRITERIA

4.1 RESPONSIVENESS OF QUALIFICATIONS SUBMISSION:

Qualifications submission shall be responsive to all material requirements that shall enable the evaluation committee to evaluate responses in accordance with the evaluation criteria to make a recommendation to Officials of the Entity.

4.2 FINANCIAL STABILITY OF RESPONDENT:

Financial stability of the Respondent to successfully undertake the project and the ability to ensure performance over the duration of the contract.

4.3 TECHNICAL COMPETENCE REQUIREMENTS:

Extent to which the proposed solution meets the needs of the Entity, including, but not limited to, the criteria in the evaluation matrix and in the submission requirements section and as expressed in this document.

Pass/Fail

Pass/Fail

100 Points Total

Page 20 of 62

4.4 EVALUATION MATRIX

Evaluation Criteria – Solicitation responses shall be evaluated in accordance with Part 200 of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Audit Requirement, and Chapter 2269 of the Texas Government Code. The Entity will make the selection on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications; and to a Respondent that negotiates a fair and reasonable price.

EVALUATION CRITERIA	SCORE
Responsiveness of Proposal	Pass/Fail
Financial Stability	Pass/Fail
Experience and Qualifications	30
Capacity to Perform	30
Pricing	40
TOTAL SCORE	100

SECTION 5 – SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

This section details the requirements for submitting all required information. Respondents are advised to carefully review all the requirements and submit all documents and information as indicated in this RFP. Additional information may be requested for clarification. Incomplete responses may lead to a submission being deemed nonresponsive and will not be considered.

All sealed proposals should be submitted on the original forms provided. Each response must be sealed and should be placed in a properly identified envelope with Respondent's Name, RFP number, and time/due date of RFP.

To ensure some degree of uniformity in the submission, please follow the outline listed below.

5.1 STATEMENT OF INTEREST

The statement of interest should be limited to a maximum of two (2) pages and must include a brief introduction of the company and the proposed subcontractors (if known), a statement of the Respondent's understanding of the work to be performed and that the company will comply with the requirements set forth in this document.

5.2 EXPERIENCE AND RELEVANT QUALIFICATIONS

Respondent shall demonstrate related professional qualifications, and knowledge in the organization. Response should include information similar in scope and size to the project scope of work in this RFP. Limit to three (3) pages, excluding the organizational chart and resumes of no more than five (5) key personnel. Minimum submission shall address the following:

5.2.1 **EXPERIENCE** – Respondents shall provide a maximum three (3) page narrative description (excluding project descriptions and references) of their firm's past performance experience in services similar in size and scope to the requested project scope of services. Describe any work performed in or for the

Entity. At a minimum, the narrative should describe the following items:

- 5.2.1.1 <u>Construction History</u>: Respondent(s) shall describe prior work in construction, including, but not limited to, number of years in business, number of projects completed, type of construction (rehabilitation and new construction), average construction time for each construction type, and number of years of experience in construction in general.
- 5.2.1.2 <u>Prior Project Descriptions</u>: In no more than two (2) pages per project, Respondents shall provide description of at least three (3) projects of similar size and scope to this Program. Projects should include project location, duration and project description and scope of work the Respondent performed.
- 5.2.2 **RELEVANT QUALIFICATIONS** Respondents must provide a brief summary to include total number and types of employees, skills, knowledge and abilities, company background history, and number of years in providing similar services as outlined in this document.
 - 5.2.2.1 Organizational Chart/Staffing Plan: Respondents shall provide an organizational chart or staffing plan/chart showing key personnel proposed for this solicitation. At a minimum, the chart or staffing plan should identify the personnel organizational structure, proposed Project Manager, subcontractors, inspectors, superintendent(s), number of proposed staff and their roles and responsibilities, percent of commitment to the project, and anticipated duration of their involvement. Respondents shall identify the key personnel that will be committed to the project. The Entity reserves the right to reject any key personnel proposed if it is determined in their best interest. All key personnel must be committed to the project at all applicable times. The qualifications and experience of key proposed personnel shall be factored into the approval of the Entity. Any approved substitutions for personnel shall be of equal or better qualifications.
 - 5.2.2.2 <u>Resumes</u>: Respondent(s) shall provide a resume (limit two (2) pages each) of key personnel identified in the organizational chart. At a minimum, the resumes shall include education, experience in the commercial construction industry, experience and responsibilities on similar projects, any professional registrations and certifications, and references. A limit of five (5) resumes may be submitted as an attachment to the response.

5.3 CAPACITY TO PERFORM

Respondent should state its firm commitment to be fully mobilized and operational within thirty (30) calendar days of contract execution.

- 5.3.1 <u>Work Capacity</u>: Respondent shall provide information to demonstrate capacity to perform requested work. Respondents shall provide a detailed typical construction schedule to show sequence of key work activities and the number of days to complete each task. **NOTE: ALL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES MUST BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 2.4 TERM OF CONTRACT.**
- 5.3.2 <u>Quality Control Program</u>: Respondent shall provide methodology and approach for quality management to control and maintain quality.
- 5.3.3 <u>Financial Capacity</u>: Firm shall state its financial capacity and the ability to perform within the payment schedule.

5.3.4 <u>Bonding Capacity</u>: Respondent(s) shall provide proof of bonding capacity in a statement addressed to the Entity from a certified bonding company authorized to do business in the State of Texas. <u>The letter must clearly state the amount of Firm's bonding capacity to be reserved for the Entity's projects</u>. Firm shall carry a minimum bonding capacity of the project value upon execution of the Contract. The bond(s) must be made payable to the Entity. <u>In your response</u>, please provide a statement regarding your ability to provide proof of bonding as directed in the Exhibits that follow.

5.4 FINANCIAL STABILITY

Respondent shall provide a statement that includes the following:

- 5.4.1 A full disclosure of any events, liabilities, or contingent liabilities that could affect Respondent's financial ability to perform this contract; and
- 5.4.2 Other financial information sufficient for the Entity, in its sole judgement, to determine if Respondent is financially solvent or adequately capitalized.

5.5 LEGAL ACTIONS

Provide a list of all pending litigation and include a brief description of the reason for legal action (if applicable).

5.6 PRICING

- 5.6.1 Respondents shall complete and submit the Pricing Sheet (see Attachment B).
- 5.6.2 Prices for all goods and/or services shall be all inclusive. Pricing offered shall be valid for ninety (90) days from response due date.
- 5.6.3 The Entity is exempt from taxes. DO NOT INCLUDE TAX IN YOUR PRICING SUBMITTAL.
- 5.6.4 Any catalog, brand name, or manufacturer's reference used in this document is descriptive NOT restrictive it is to indicate type and quality desired. Pricing on brands of like nature and quality will be considered. If providing other than referenced specifications, Responder must show manufacturer, brand or trade name, lot number, etc., of the article offered. If other than brand(s) specified is offered, illustrations and complete description should be made part of the response. If the Respondent takes no exceptions to specifications or reference data, he will be required to furnish brand names, numbers, etc., as specified. All items utilized shall be new, in first class condition and manufacturer's latest model and design including containers suitable for shipment and storage, unless otherwise indicated in the RFP specifications. Verbal agreements to the contrary will not be recognized.

LIST OF EXHIBITS

- EXHIBIT A PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK
- EXHIBIT B REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS
- EXHIBIT C PREVAILING WAGE DECISION
- EXHIBIT D PLANS, REPORTS & OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION

EXHIBIT A – PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK

Phasing and Timeline:

The first phase of the project is expected to take approximately one year to complete. During this time, a new main building will be constructed on the site. This phase will include site preparation, foundation work, structural framing, and the installation of exterior and interior finishes. Utility connections, including water, sewer, electricity, gas, and internet, will also be established during this phase. Importantly, the existing Fayette Building will remain operational throughout Phase 1, ensuring that the Food Pantry's activities continue without disruption.

Phase 2, which will commence after the completion of the main building, is expected to last for three months. During this phase, the focus will shift to renovating the Fayette Building. This renovation will transform the building into a Community Nutrition Education Center, featuring a commercial kitchen, a computer lab, and dedicated spaces for various community programs.

Demolition and Asbestos Removal:

Before the new construction begins, asbestos must be removed from an existing house on the property. This critical step will be conducted following detailed specifications already in place, with oversight provided by a qualified consultant to ensure compliance with safety regulations. Once the asbestos has been safely removed, the house, along with the remaining mobile home on the property, will be demolished. It is worth noting that while two mobile homes were initially indicated on the plans, one has already been removed, leaving only one structure to be demolished.

Offsite Road Improvements to Pine Street:

In addition to the on-site work, the project includes offsite road improvements to Pine Street. These improvements will involve upgrading the roadway and creating parking areas, all of which will be constructed according to the City of Bastrop's standards and specifications. To facilitate smooth access during the construction process and to ensure that the new facility is easily accessible upon completion, it is recommended that these road improvements be completed before the main building construction begins. However, if scheduling constraints arise, the roadwork can be coordinated concurrently with the building construction.

The City of Bastrop has agreed to reimburse the costs associated with these offsite improvements. To ensure a smooth reimbursement process, all invoicing related to the road improvements should be separated from other project costs.

Utility Connections:

As part of the site preparation, the contractor will be responsible for capping all existing utilities at their main points. New utility connections, including water, sewer, electricity, gas, and internet, will be established to support the new main building. The gas connection, in particular, will be routed to a backup generator to ensure continuous operation during power outages. All utility installations will adhere to local codes and standards, and coordination with utility providers will be crucial to ensure timely completion.

Operation of the Fayette Building:

The Fayette Building currently serves as a vital part of the Food Pantry, providing essential space for food storage and distribution. During Phase 1, while the new main building is under construction, the Fayette Building will remain operational to continue these activities. Once the main building is completed and the Food Pantry operations are relocated there, Phase 2 will commence, focusing on the renovation of the Fayette Building. After the renovation, the Fayette Building will transition into a Community Nutrition Education Center.

Predevelopment Meeting with the City:

Before any demolition or construction activities begin, a predevelopment meeting with the City of Bastrop will be held. This meeting is essential to ensure that all required permits are obtained and that the project complies with local regulations. Attendees at the meeting will include representatives from the contractor, civil engineering team, architectural team, and the city. The agenda will cover the project scope, demolition plans, construction permits, and any other regulatory requirements. This meeting will provide an opportunity to address potential issues, clarify expectations, and ensure that the project is set up for success from the outset.

EXHIBIT B – ARPA REQUIRED PROVISIONS

CFR 200.327 Contract provisions. The Non-Federal entity's contracts should contain applicable provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200—Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards. The Non-Federal entity's contracts must contain the provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200—Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards, as applicable.

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	2 CFR 200 Appendix II (A-L)		
>\$250,000 (Simplified Acquisition Threshold)	Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by <u>41 U.S.C. 1908</u> , must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (A)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
>\$10,000	All contracts in excess of \$10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the Non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (B)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
	Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under <u>41 CFR Part 60</u> , all contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in <u>41 CFR Part 60-1.3</u> must include the equal opportunity clause provided under <u>41 CFR</u> <u>60-1.4(b)</u> , in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (<u>30 FR 12319</u> , <u>12935</u> , <u>3 CFR Part</u> , <u>1964-1965</u> Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at <u>41 CFR part 60</u> , "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."		
	 41 CFR 60-1.4 Equal opportunity clause. (b) Federally assisted construction contracts. (1) Except as otherwise provided, each administering agency shall require the inclusion of the following language as a condition of any grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee involving federally assisted construction which is not exempt from the requirements of the equal opportunity clause: 		Contractor RFP/IFB
None	The [recipient] hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as defined in the regulations of the Secretary of Labor at 41 CFR Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any Federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, the following equal opportunity clause:		Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
	 During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: (1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 		
	Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and		

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.		
	(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.		
	(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.		
	(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.		
	(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.		
	(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.		
	(7) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.		
	(8) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:		
	Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.		
	The [recipient] further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, that if the [recipient] so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any		

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract. The [recipient] agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the recipient agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance. The recipient further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the [recipient] agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the [recipient] under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such [recipient]; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.		
>\$10,000,000 for ARPA but State Provision Applies at any amount and/or >\$2,000 for CDBG/Braided Funds Projects See TX Prevailing Wage Laws	Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (<u>40 U.S.C. 3141-3148</u>). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of \$10,000,00 awarded by Non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (<u>40 U.S.C. 3141-3144</u> , and <u>3146-3148</u>) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (<u>29 CFR Part 5</u> , "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The Non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The Non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (D)	Contractor RFP/IFB Subrecipients
>\$100,000	Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (<u>40 U.S.C. 3701-3708</u>). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the Non-Federal entity in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with <u>40 U.S.C. 3702</u> and <u>3704</u> , as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (<u>29 CFR Part 5</u>). Under <u>40 U.S.C. 3702</u> of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (E)	Contractor RFP/IFB Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of <u>40 U.S.C. 3704</u> are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.		
None	Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (F)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
>\$150,000	Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended – Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of \$150,000 must contain a provision that requires the Non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (G)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
>\$25,000	Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) – A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (H)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
>\$100,000	Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) – Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding \$100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with Non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Non-Federal award.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (I) and 24 CFR §570.303	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	 See 2 CFR §200.323 - Procurement of Recovered Materials. Where applicable, in the performance of contract, pursuant to 2 CFR 200.323, the contractor must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded \$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines. To the extent that the scope of work or specifications in the contract requires the contractor to provide recovered materials the scope of work or specifications are modified to require that as follows. i. In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired— 1. Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule; 2. Meeting contract performance requirements; or 3. At a reasonable price. ii. Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at EPA's Comprehensive-procurement_guideline.cogg. program. iii. The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of section 6002 of the "Solid Waste Disposal Act." 	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (J)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
	 See 2 CFR §200.216 - Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment (a) Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to: (1) Procure or obtain; (2) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or (3) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in <u>Public Law 115-232</u>, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). (i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). (ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment. (iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity 	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (K)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients

	owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country. (b) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889,		
	 subsection (f), paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers is sustained. (c) See <u>Public Law 115-232</u>, section 889 for additional information. (d) See also § 200.471. 		
	 See 2 CFR §200.322 - Domestic Preferences for Procurements. (a) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Non-Federal entity should, to the greatest extent practicable under a Federal award, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The requirements of this section must be included in all subawards including all contracts and purchase orders for work or products under this award. (b) For purposes of this section: (1) "Produced in the United States" means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States. (2) "Manufactured products" means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (L)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
	Additional 2 CFR 200 references & Other Regulations		
None	The Federal awarding agency must establish conflict of interest policies for Federal awards. The Non-Federal entity must disclose in writing any potential conflict of interest to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity in accordance with applicable Federal awarding agency policy.	2 CFR 200.112	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
None	 Contracting with HUB, small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms. (a) The Non-Federal entity must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. (b) Affirmative steps must include: (1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; (2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources; (3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business; (4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which 	2 CFR 200.321	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	 encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; (5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and (6) Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs (b)(1) through (5) of this section. 		
>\$10,000	An NFE (Non-Federal Entity) that is a state agency or an agency of a political subdivision of a state, and the NFE's contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act. Applicable NFEs must include a contract provision requiring compliance with this requirement. This includes contracts awarded by a state agency or political subdivision of a state and its contractors for certain items, as designated by the EPA, with a purchase price greater than \$10,000. Indian Tribal Governments and nonprofit organizations are not required to comply with this provision. Additional requirements are listed below.	2 CFR 200.323	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
	 Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other Non-Federal entity records pertinent to a Federal award must be retained for a period of three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for Federal awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, as reported to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient. Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities must not impose any other record retention requirements upon Non-Federal entities. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations. The only exceptions are the following: (a) If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the 3-year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations, and regulations. 	2 CFR 200.334	Contractor RFP/IFB
None	 (b) When the Non-Federal entity is notified in writing by the Federal awarding agency, cognizant agency for audit, oversight agency for audit, cognizant agency for indirect costs, or pass-through entity to extend the retention period. (c) Records for real property and equipment acquired with Federal funds must be retained for 3 years after final disposition. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms and conditions and regulations. (d) When records are transferred to or maintained by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity, the 3-year retention requirement is not applicable to the Non-Federal entity All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations. (e) Records for program income transactions after the period of performance. In some cases, recipients must report program income after the period for the records pertaining to the earning of the program income starts from the end of the Non-Federal entity's fiscal year in which the program income is earned. (f) Indirect cost rate proposals and cost allocations plans. This paragraph applies to the following types of documents and their supporting records: Indirect cost rate 		Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	 as computer usage chargeback rates or composite fringe benefit rates). (1) If submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, or other computation is required to be submitted to the Federal Government (or to the pass-through entity) to form the basis for negotiation of the rate, then the 3-year retention period for its supporting records starts from the date of such submission. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations. (2) If not submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, or other computation is not required to be submitted to the Federal Government (or to the pass-through entity) for negotiation purposes, then the 3-year retention period for the proposal, plan, or computation and its supporting records starts from the end of the fiscal year (or other accounting period) covered by the proposal, plan, or other computation. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, plan, or other computation. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, plan, or other computation. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations. 		
None	The Federal awarding agency and the Non-Federal entity should, whenever practicable, collect, transmit, and store Federal award-related information in open and machine-readable formats rather than in closed formats or on paper in accordance with applicable legislative requirements. A machine-readable format is a format in a standard computer language (not English text) that can be read automatically by a web browser or computer system. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must always provide or accept paper versions of Federal award-related information to and from the Non-Federal entity upon request. If paper copies are submitted, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must and two copies. When original records are electronic and cannot be altered, there is no need to create and retain paper copies. When original records are paper, electronic versions may be substituted through the use of duplication or other forms of electronic media provided that they are subject to periodic quality control reviews, provide reasonable safeguards against alteration, and remain readable.	2 CFR 200.336	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
None	CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES ENGAGED IN BUSINESS WITH IRAN, SUDAN, OR FOREIGN TERRORIST ORGANIZATION PROHIBITED. A governmental entity may not enter into a governmental contract with a company that is identified on a list prepared and maintained under Section 806.051, 807.051, or 2252.153. The term "foreign terrorist organization" in this paragraph has the meaning assigned to such a term in Section 2252.151(2) of the Texas Government Code.	Texas Government Code 2252.152	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
>\$100,000	 PROVISION REQUIRED IN CONTRACT. (a) This section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of \$100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 	Texas Government Code 2271	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
For Critical Infrastructure Projects	 PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH CERTAIN FOREIGN-OWNED COMPANIES IN CONNECTION WITH CRITICAL INFRASTRUCTURE. PROHIBITED CONTRACTS. (a) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract or other agreement relating to critical infrastructure in this state with a company: 	Texas Government Code, Title 10, Subtitle F, Chapter 2274.0102	Subrecipients EC 6.1 Awardees

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	(1) if, under the contract or other agreement, the company would be granted direct or remote access to or control of critical infrastructure in this state, excluding access specifically allowed by the governmental entity for product warranty and support purposes; and		10
	(2) if the governmental entity knows that the company is:		
	(A) owned by or the majority of stock or other ownership interest of the company is held or controlled by:		
	 (i) individuals who are citizens of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated country; or 		
	 (ii) a company or other entity, including a governmental entity, that is owned or controlled by citizens of or is directly controlled by the government of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated country; or 		
	(B) headquartered in China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated country.		
	(b) The prohibition described by Subsection (a) applies regardless of whether:		
	(1) the company's or its parent company's securities are publicly traded; or		
	(2) the company or its parent company is listed on a public stock exchange as:		
	(A) a Chinese, Iranian, North Korean, or Russian company; or		
	(B) a company of a designated country.		
None	Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.	42 U.S.C. 6201	Contractor RFP/IFB Subrecipients
None	The Firm agrees that no otherwise qualified individual with disabilities shall, solely by reason of his/her disability, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination, including discrimination in employment, under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.	Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended.	Subrecipients
	ARPA Terms & Conditions		
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 Use of Funds. a. Recipient understands and agrees that the funds disbursed under this award may only be used in compliance with section 603(c) of the Social Security Act (the Act), Treasury's regulations implementing that section, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing. b. Recipient will determine prior to engaging in any project using this assistance that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability to ensure proper planning, management, and completion of such project. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	2. Period of Performance. The period of performance for this award begins on the date hereof and ends on December 31, 2026. As set forth in Treasury's implementing regulations, Recipients may use award funds to cover eligible costs incurred during the period that begins on March 3, 2021, and ends on December 31, 2024.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 Reporting. Recipient agrees to comply with any reporting obligations established by Treasury as they relate to this award. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2;	Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
		Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 4. Maintenance of and Access to Records a. Recipient shall maintain records and financial documents sufficient to evidence compliance with section 603(c) of the Act, Treasury's regulations implementing that section, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing. b. The Treasury Office of Inspector General and the Government Accountability Office, or their authorized representatives, shall have the right of access to records (electronic and otherwise) of Recipient in order to conduct audits or other investigations. c. Records shall be maintained by Recipient for a period of five (5) years after all funds have been expended or returned to Treasury, whichever is later. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	5. Pre-award Costs. Pre-award costs, as defined in 2 CFR § 200.458, may not be paid with funding from this award.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 Administrative Costs. Recipient may use funds provided under this award to cover both direct and indirect costs. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	7. Cost Sharing. Cost sharing or matching funds are not required to be provided by Recipient.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	8. Conflicts of Interest. Recipient understands and agrees it must maintain a conflict of interest policy consistent with 2 CFR § 200.318(c) and that such conflict of interest policy is applicable to each activity funded under this award. Recipient and subrecipients must disclose in writing to Treasury or the pass-through entity, as appropriate, any potential conflict of interest affecting the awarded funds in accordance with 2 CFR § 200.112.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 9. Compliance with Applicable Law and Regulations. a. Recipient agrees to comply with the requirements of section 603 of the Act, regulations adopted by Treasury pursuant to section 603(f) of the Act, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing. Recipient also agrees to comply with all other applicable federal statutes, regulations, and executive orders, and Recipient shall provide for such compliance by other parties in any agreements it enters into with other parties relating to this award. b. Federal regulations applicable to this award include, without limitation, the following: i. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 CFR Part 200, other than such provisions as Treasury may determine are inapplicable to this Award and subject to such exceptions as may be otherwise provided by Treasury. Subpart F – Audit 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	Requirements of the Uniform Guidance, implementing the Single Audit Act, shall apply to this award. ii. Universal Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM), 2 CFR Part 25, pursuant to which the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 25 is hereby incorporated by reference.		
	iii. Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information, 2 CFR Part 170, pursuant to which the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 170 is hereby incorporated by reference.		
	iv. OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement), 2 CFR Part 180, including the requirement to include a term or condition in all lower tier covered transactions (contracts and subcontracts described in 2 CFR Part 180, subpart B) that the award is subject to 2 CFR Part 180 and Treasury's implementing regulation at 31 CFR Part 19.		
	v. Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, pursuant to which the award term set forth in 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix XII to Part 200 is hereby incorporated by reference.		
	 vi. Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace, 31 CFR Part 20. vii. New Restrictions on Lobbying, 31 CFR Part 21. viii. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4601-4655) and implementing regulations. ix. Generally applicable federal environmental laws and regulations. 		
	 c. Statutes and regulations prohibiting discrimination applicable to this award include, without limitation, the following: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and Treasury's implementing regulations at 31 CFR Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin under programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, familial status, or disability; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance; The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and Treasury's implementing regulations at 31 CFR Part 23, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of age in programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of services provided or made available by state and local governments or instrumentalities or agencies thereto. 		
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	10. Remedial Actions. In the event of Recipient's noncompliance with section 603 of the Act, other applicable laws, Treasury's implementing regulations, guidance, or any reporting or other program requirements, Treasury may impose additional conditions on the receipt of a subsequent tranche of future award funds, if any, or take other available remedies as set forth in 2 CFR § 200.339. In the case of a violation of section 603(c) of the Act regarding the use of funds, previous payments shall be subject to recoupment as provided in section 603(e) of the Act.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	11. Hatch Act. Recipient agrees to comply, as applicable, with requirements of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328), which limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by this federal assistance.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	12. False Statements. Recipient understands that making false statements or claims in connection with this award is a violation of federal law and may result in criminal, civil, or administrative sanctions, including fines, imprisonment, civil damages and penalties, debarment from participating in federal awards or contracts, and/or any other remedy available by law.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	13. Publications. Any publications produced with funds from this award must display the following language: "This project [is being] [was] supported, in whole or in part, by federal award number [enter project FAIN] awarded to [name of Recipient] by the U.S. Department of the Treasury."	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 14. Debts Owed the Federal Government. a. Any funds paid to Recipient (1) in excess of the amount to which Recipient is finally determined to be authorized to retain under the terms of this award; (2) that are determined by the Treasury Office of Inspector General to have been misused; or (3) that are determined by Treasury to be subject to a repayment obligation pursuant to section 603(e) of the Act and have not been repaid by Recipient shall constitute a debt to the federal government. b. Any debts determined to be owed the federal government must be paid promptly by Recipient. A debt is delinquent if it has not been paid by the date specified in Treasury's initial written demand for payment, unless other satisfactory arrangements have been made or if the Recipient knowingly or improperly retains funds that are a debt as defined in paragraph 14(a). Treasury will take any actions available to it to collect such a debt. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 15. Disclaimer. a. The United States expressly disclaims any and all responsibility or liability to Recipient or third persons for the actions of Recipient or third persons resulting in death, bodily injury, property damages, or any other losses resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any other losses resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any contract, or subcontract under this award. b. The acceptance of this award by Recipient does not in any way establish an agency relationship between the United States and Recipient. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 16. Protections for Whistleblowers. a. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, Recipient may not discharge, demote, or otherwise discriminate against an employee in reprisal for disclosing to any of the list of persons or entities provided below, information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of gross mismanagement of a federal contract or grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal contract or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal contract (including the competition for or negotiation of a contract) or grant. b. The list of persons and entities referenced in the paragraph above includes the following: i. A member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress; ii. An Inspector General; iii. The Government Accountability Office; iv. A Treasury employee responsible for contract or grant oversight or management; v. An authorized official of the Department of Justice or other law enforcement 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	 agency; vi. A court or grand jury; or vii. A management official or other employee of Recipient, contractor, or subcontractor who has the responsibility to investigate, discover, or address misconduct. c. Recipient shall inform its employees in writing of the rights and remedies provided under this section, in the predominant native language of the workforce. 		
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	17. Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States. Pursuant to Executive Order 13043, 62 FR 19217 (Apr. 18, 1997), Recipient should encourage its contractors to adopt and enforce on-the-job seat belt policies and programs for their employees when operating company-owned, rented or personally owned vehicles.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	18. Reducing Text Messaging While Driving. Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, 74 FR 51225 (Oct. 6, 2009), Recipient should encourage its employees, subrecipients, and contractors to adopt and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving, and Recipient should establish workplace safety policies to decrease accidents caused by distracted drivers	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors

EXHIBIT C – PREVAILING WAGE DECISION

Respondent should develop their pricing in consideration of compliance with the following wage decision.

"General Decision Number: TX20240285 08/30/2024

Superseded General Decision Number: TX20230285

State: Texas

Construction Type: Building

County: Bastrop County in Texas.

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include single family homes or apartments up to and including 4 stories).

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658. Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(1).

If the contract is entered into on or after January 30, 2022, or the contract is renewed or extended (e.g., an option is exercised) on or after January 30, 2022:	 Executive Order 14026 generally applies to the contract. The contractor must pay all covered workers at least \$17.20 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in 2024.
If the contract was awarded on or between January 1, 2015 and January 29, 2022, and the contract is not renewed or extended on or after January 30, 2022:	

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must still submit a conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the Executive Orders is available at http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number	Publication Date
0	01/05/2024
1	01/12/2024

SAM.gov

2	04/05/2024
3	06/14/2024
4	07/12/2024
5	08/30/2024

* ASBE0087-014 06/03/2024

Fringes Rates ASBESTOS WORKER/HEAT & FROST INSULATOR (Duct, Pipe and Mechanical System Insulation)....\$ 29.50 8.79 BOIL0074-003 07/01/2023 Rates Fringes 24.64 BOILERMAKER.....\$ 37.00 _____ -----CARP1266-002 01/01/2022 Fringes Rates CARPENTER (Excludes Acoustical Ceiling Installation, Drywall Hanging, Form Work, and Metal Stud Installation).....\$ 26.00 9.12 -----ELEC0520-005 01/02/2022 Rates Fringes ELECTRICIAN Excludes Installation of Sound and Communication Systems.....31.5211%+5.73Low Voltage Wiring Only....\$ 31.5211%+5.73 Low Voltage Wiring Only.....\$ 31.52 _____ ELEV0133-002 01/01/2024 Rates Fringes ELEVATOR MECHANIC.....\$ 49.38 37.885 Footnote: A. 6% under 5 years based on regular hourly rate for all hours worked. 8% over 5 years based on regular hourly rate for all hours worked. B. Holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, the Friday after Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, and Veterans Day. _____ ENGI0450-002 04/01/2014 Rates Fringes POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR Cranes.....\$ 34.85 9.85 -----IRON0084-011 06/01/2023 Rates Fringes

IRONWORKER, ORNAMENTAL		8.13
IRON0482-012 06/01/2023		
	Rates	Fringes
IRONWORKER, STRUCTURAL		7.73
PLUM0286-010 06/03/2024		
	Rates	Fringes
PIPEFITTER (Including HVAC Pipe Installation)		15.92
SFTX0669-002 04/01/2024		
	Rates	Fringes
SPRINKLER FITTER (Fire Sprinklers)		
* SHEE0067-007 07/03/2024		
	Rates	Fringes
SHEET METAL WORKER Excludes HVAC Duct Installation HVAC Duct Installation Only.5	\$ 32.24	15.89 15.89
* SUTX2014-065 07/21/2014		
	Rates	Fringes
BRICKLAYER	\$ 20.16	0.00
CARPENTER (Acoustical Ceiling Installation Only)	\$ 14.00 **	0.00
CARPENTER (Form Work Only)	\$ 15.62 **	0.05
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	\$ 15.71 **	0.00
DRYWALL FINISHER/TAPER	\$ 16.96 **	4.34
DRYWALL HANGER AND METAL STUD	\$ 17.41	3.49
ELECTRICAL INSTALLER (Sound and Communication Systems) (Excludes Wiring)	\$ 12.50 **	0.65
FLOOR LAYER: Carpet	\$ 21.88	0.00
GLAZIER	\$ 12.83 **	0.00
HVAC MECHANIC (HVAC Unit Installation Only)	\$ 24.46	6.98
IRONWORKER, REINFORCING	\$ 12.27 **	0.00
LABORER: Common or General	\$ 11.96 **	0.53

9/12/24,7:26 AM LABORER: Mason Tender - Brick\$ 12.17 **	SAM.gov 0.00
LABORER: Mason Tender -	
Cement/Concrete\$ 11.85 **	0.00
LABORER: Pipelayer\$ 12.45 **	0.00
LABORER: Roof Tearoff\$ 11.28 **	0.00
OPERATOR: Backhoe/Excavator/Trackhoe\$ 19.43	3.49
OPERATOR: Bobcat/Skid Steer/Skid Loader\$ 13.00 **	0.00
OPERATOR: Bulldozer\$ 14.00 **	0.00
OPERATOR: Drill\$ 14.50 **	0.00
OPERATOR: Forklift\$ 16.40 **	0.00
OPERATOR: Grader/Blade\$ 19.30	0.00
OPERATOR: Loader\$ 14.00 **	0.00
OPERATOR: Mechanic\$ 18.75	5.12
OPERATOR: Paver (Asphalt, Aggregate, and Concrete)\$ 16.03 **	0.00
OPERATOR: Roller\$ 11.25 **	0.00
PAINTER (Brush, Roller and Spray), Excludes Drywall Finishing/Taping\$ 18.76	6.35
PLUMBER, Excludes HVAC Pipe Installation\$ 21.67	4.76
ROOFER\$ 12.00 **	0.00
TILE FINISHER\$ 11.32 **	0.00
TILE SETTER\$ 16.35 **	0.00
TRUCK DRIVER: Dump Truck\$ 12.39 **	1.18
TRUCK DRIVER: Flatbed Truck\$ 19.65	8.57
TRUCK DRIVER: Semi-Trailer Truck\$ 12.50 **	0.00
TRUCK DRIVER: Water Truck\$ 12.00 **	4.11
WATERPROOFER\$ 16.30 **	0.06

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

** Workers in this classification may be entitled to a higher minimum wage under Executive Order 14026 (\$17.20) or 13658 (\$12.90). Please see the Note at the top of the wage

9/12/24, 7:26 AM

determination for more information. Please also note that the minimum wage requirements of Executive Order 14026 are not currently being enforced as to any contract or subcontract to which the states of Texas, Louisiana, or Mississippi, including their agencies, are a party.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (iii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or ""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

9/12/24, 7:26 AM

SAM.gov

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

State Adopted Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SA"" identifier indicate that the prevailing wage rate set by a state (or local) government was adopted under 29 C.F.R 1.3(g)-(h). Example: SAME2023-007 01/03/2024. SA reflects that the rates are state adopted. ME refers to the State of Maine. 2023 is the year during which the state completed the survey on which the listed classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 01/03/2024 reflects the date on which the classifications and rates under the ?SA? identifier took effect under state law in the state from which the rates were adopted.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:

- * an existing published wage determination
- * a survey underlying a wage determination
- * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour National Office because National Office has responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION"

EXHIBIT D – PLANS, REPORTS & OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION

Contact the Sole Point of Contact listed in Section 1 for a link to download the following:

- 1. Site Development Plans
- 2. Main Building Architectural Plans
- 3. Fayette Building Architectural Plans
- 4. Project Manual
- 5. Environmental Reports
- 6. Drainage Report
- 7. Geotechnical Report
- 8. Site Survey
- 9. Furniture Schedule
- 10. Asbestos Abatement Specifications & Inspection Report

LIST OF REQUIRED INFORMATION ATTACHMENTS A THROUGH L

In addition to the narrative requested in the RFP, the following documents are to be completed and returned with the Respondent's response package. See the solicitation and each of the following attachments for specific instructions.

- 1. ATTACHMENT A SOLICITATION RESPONSE COVER SHEET/ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA/ SUBMISSION CHECKLIST
- 2. ATTACHMENT B PRICING SHEET
- 3. ATTACHMENT C FEDERAL DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION STATUS CERTIFICATION
- 4. ATTACHMENT D CUSTOMER/CLIENT REFERENCES
- 5. ATTACHMENT E INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
- 6. ATTACHMENT F PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS
- 7. ATTACHMENT G ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
- 9. ATTACHMENT H CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE (FORM CIQ)
- 10. ATTACHMENT I DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES SF-LLL CERTIFICATION
- 11. ATTACHMENT J BIDDER'S CERTIFICATION
- 12. ATTACHMENT K NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT
- 13. ATTACHMENT L SAMPLE CONTRACT

ATTACHMENT A SOLICITATION RESPONSE COVER SHEET/ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA/SUBMISSION CHECKLIST

This form is to be completed and returned with the Respondent's submittal.

Solicitation Response Cover Sheet

NAME OF SOLICITATION:	
NAME OF BUSINESS (RESPONDENT):	
MAILING ADDRESS:	
CITY, STATE, ZIP:	
PHONE NUMBER:	
EMAIL OF RESPONDENT CONTACT:	
EIN/FEDERAL TAX IDENTIFICATION NO:	

Acknowledgement of Addenda

ADDENDUM NO.	DATE ISSUED

 \Box Please check this box if no addenda were issued.

ATTACHMENT A (CONTINUED) SOLICITATION RESPONSE COVER SHEET/ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA/SUBMISSION CHECKLIST

This checklist is provided for the Respondent's use in assuring compliance with required documentation; however, it does not include all specification requirements and does not relieve the Respondent of the need to read and comply with the specifications. Your submittal of the documents attests to the fact that you have read and/or included the documents with your response.

CHECK FOR COMPLETION	DOCUMENTS REQUIRED FOR SUBMISSION
	A. Solicitation Response Cover Sheet/Acknowledgement of Addenda/Submission Checklist
	B. Pricing Sheet
	C. Federal Debarment/Suspension Status Certification
	D. Customer/Client References
	E. Insurance Requirements
	F. Bid, Payment, and Performance Bonds
	G. Ethics and Conflict of Interest Acknowledgement
	H. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (Form CIQ)
	Please check this box if the Respondent does not identify a conflict of interest and therefore, will not be submitting the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire Form CIQ.
	I. Disclosure of Lobbying Activities SF-LLL Certification
	(Required for all bids exceeding \$100,000)
	Please check this box if the bid does not exceed \$100,000.
	J. Bidder's Certification
	K. Non-Collusion Affidavit

Submission Checklist

The Respondent's authorized agent must sign this document to acknowledge having read this solicitation carefully and completely, including the list of addenda, and that the information submitted is true and correct.

AUTHORIZED AGENT NAME:	
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:	
TITLE OF AUTHORIZED AGENT:	
DATE OF SIGNATURE:	

Prices for all goods and/or services shall be all inclusive. Pricing offered shall be valid for ninety (90) days from response due date. The Entity is exempt from taxes. DO NOT INCLUDE TAX IN YOUR PRICING SUBMITTAL.

Lump Sum Price: Respondent shall provide a Lump Sum Price for each <u>component of work</u> as indicated below to complete the scope of services contained in Exhibit A – Project Scope of Work in accordance with the plans & specifications In Exhibit D. Costs include all construction services, labor, materials, project management, profit, bonding, insurance, permitting, general conditions, profit, and other costs to provide a turnkey product.

Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry - Bid Table		
Main Building		
Item Number	Description	Total Cost
1	General Requirements	
2	Existing Conditions	
3	Concrete	
4	Masonry	
5	Metals	
6	Wood, Plastics, and Composites	
7	Thermal and Moisture Protection	
8	Openings	
9	Finishes	
10	Specialties	
11	Equipment	
12	Furnishings	
13	Special Construction	
14	Conveying Equipment	
21	Fire Suppression	
22	Plumbing	
23	Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning (HVAC)	
25	Integrated Automation	
26	Electrical	
27	Communications	
28	Electronic Safety and Security	
31	Earthwork	
32	Exterior Improvements	
33	Utilities	
34	Transportation	
35	Waterway and Marine Construction	
40	Process Interconnections	
41	Material Processing and Handling Equipment	
42	Process Heating, Cooling, and Drying Equipment	
43	Process Gas and Liquid Handling, Purification, and Storage	
44	Pollution and Waste Control Equipment	
45	Industry-Specific Manufacturing Equipment	
46	Water and Wastewater Equipment	
48	Electrical Power Generation	
49	Electrical Transmission and Distribution	
50	Specialized Construction (Items listed Below)	
50.1	Offsite Roadway Improvements	
50.2	Water harvesting Tanks	
50.3	Indoor Freezer/Cooler Units	
50.4	Backup Generator	
50.5	Asbestos Removal	
50.5	Furnishing (See Exhibit D)	

Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry - Bid Table		
Old Fayette Building		
Item Number	Description	Total Cost
1	General Requirements	
2	Existing Conditions	
3	Concrete	
4	Masonry	
5	Metals	
6	Wood, Plastics, and Composites	
7	Thermal and Moisture Protection	
8	Openings	
9	Finishes	
10	Specialties	
11	Equipment	
12	Furnishings	
13	Special Construction	
14	Conveying Equipment	
21	Fire Suppression	
22	Plumbing	
23	Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning (HVAC)	
25	Integrated Automation	
26	Electrical	
27	Communications	
28	Electronic Safety and Security	
31	Earthwork	
32	Exterior Improvements	
33	Utilities	
34	Transportation	
35	Waterway and Marine Construction	
40	Process Interconnections	
41	Material Processing and Handling Equipment	
42	Process Heating, Cooling, and Drying Equipment	
43	Process Gas and Liquid Handling, Purification, and Storage	
44	Pollution and Waste Control Equipment	
45	Industry-Specific Manufacturing Equipment	
46	Water and Wastewater Equipment	
48	Electrical Power Generation	
49	Electrical Transmission and Distribution	
50	Specialized Construction (Items listed Below)	
50.1	Water harvesting Tanks	
50.2	Furnishing (See Exhibit D)	

This project is funded by Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds which requires all contractors and vendors not be debarred according to SAM.gov and the Texas State Comptroller's office.

Verification of SAM.gov Status

Respondent must not be suspended or debarred at the time of the proposal response submittal. The proposal response package must include the following:

1. Respondent must complete and submit the "Federal Debarment/Suspension Status Certification" form with the proposal response submittal. The "Federal Debarment/Suspension Status Certification" is located on the next page herein.

FEDERAL DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION STATUS CERTIFICATION

COMPANY/ENTITY NAME:

CONTACT NAME:

CONTACT EMAIL & PHONE:

APPLICABLE REGULATIONS

As stated in the ARPA/SLFRF Terms & Conditions: "OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement), 2 CFR Part 180, including the requirement to include a term or condition in all lower tier covered transactions (contracts and subcontracts described in 2 CFR Part 180, subpart B) that the award is subject to 2 CFR Part 180 and Treasury's implementing regulation at 31 CFR Part 19."

Also, Federal Executive Order (E.O.) 12549: "Debarment" requires that contractors, beneficiaries or subrecipient organizations and their principals – who are receiving awards, using federal funds, are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency from doing business with the federal government. By signing this document, you certify that your organization and its principals are not debarred. Failure to comply or attempts to edit this language may disqualify you from receiving or retaining funds. Information on debarment is available at the following website: www.sam.gov

Be advised that we may pursue available remedies per 2 CFR 180.360 as an ARPA recipient entity: *"If a federal agency later determines that you failed to tell the [awarding agency] that you were excluded or disqualified at the time you entered into the covered transaction with that person/awarding agency, the agency may pursue any available remedies, including suspension and debarment."*

(INITIAL)	CERTIFICATION & SIGNATURE		
	We hereby certify that we are not excluded, disqualified, or debarred from receiving federally funded awards.		
	We hereby confirm that if that status should change within the course of this agreement, we wil provide notification immediately. Failure to do so may result in the termination of this agreement and/or the repayment of funds.		
Your signature certifies that neither you nor your principal(s) is/are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.			
Signature			
Date:	Printed Name & Title:		

Respondents shall use Attachment D to provide a <u>minimum of three (3) references</u> for jobs completed within the last five (5) years.

The references shall illustrate recent experience successfully completing work of a similar nature and scope as the work described in this RFP. This form may be modified as needed to comply with the requirement to document company information. *Failure to provide references may result in the proposal being considered non-responsive.*

REQUIRED REFERENCE INFORMATION

REFERENCE #1:

Company Name:	
Company Address:	
Contract Project Name:	
Contact Name and Title:	
Contact Phone:	
Contact Email:	
Contract Award Date:	
Contract Completion Date:	
Brief Description of Services:	

ATTACHMENT D: CUSTOMER/CLIENT REFERENCES (CONTINUED)

REFERENCE #2:

Company Name:	
Company Address:	
Contract Project Name:	
Contact Name and Title:	
Contact Phone:	
Contact Email:	
Contract Award Date:	
Contract Completion Date:	
Brief Description of Services:	

ATTACHMENT D: CUSTOMER/CLIENT REFERENCES (CONTINUED)

REFERENCE #3:

Company Name:	
Company Address:	
Contract Project Name:	
Contact Name and Title:	
Contact Phone:	
Contact Email:	
Contract Award Date:	
Contract Completion Date:	
Brief Description of Services:	

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

<u>As part of the proposal response, the Respondent</u> <u>shall supply an original, certified copy of an Insurance</u> <u>Certificate</u> listing the Entity as additional insured. The successful Respondent will be required to maintain, at all times during performance of the contract, the insurance detailed below.

- a. **Workers' Compensation Insurance** as required by laws and regulations applicable to and covering employees of Contract engaged in the performance of the work under this agreement with a limit of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00).
- b. **Employers' Liability Insurance** protecting Respondent against common law liability, in the absence of statutory liability, for employee bodily injury arising out of the master-servant relationship with a limit of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00).
- c. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance including products/completed operation with limits of liability of not less than: Bodily Injury One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per each person, Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) per each occurrence/aggregate; Property Damage One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per each occurrence;

BUILDER'S RISK INSURANCE REQUIREMENT – ONLY TO BE SUPPLIED BY SELECTED RESPONDENT

After award, the Selected Firm(s) <u>shall supply evidence of Builder's Risk Insurance</u>. The Selected Firm(s) will be required to maintain, at all times during performance of the contract, the insurance detailed below.

Builder's Risk Insurance will be required for an amount sufficient to ensure completion of the project scope. Firm(s) will be required to provide evidence of builder's risk coverage prior to contract execution, and no later than fifteen (15) days of request.

Responders shall follow the instructions provided below regarding Bonding.

The types of construction bonds include a bid bond, payment bond, and performance bond, as financial protection, and assurance to the Entity that the project will be accepted and completed free of all liens.

Bid Bond: Guarantees the **Respondent** will honor the terms of the RFP and accept the job if awarded the contract.

Payment Bond: Guarantees payment of subcontractors, laborers, and suppliers in compliance with the contract terms if the **Contractor** fails to PAY subcontractors and material suppliers.

Performance Bond: Guarantees **Contractor** faithful PERFORMANCE to complete the contract in compliance with the agreed plans, specifications, and contract documents.

The only forms of surety acceptable for bonds are:

- Cashier's Check
- Certified Check
- United States Treasury Bond
- Certificate of Deposit
- Irrevocable Letter of Credit issued by a financial Institution subject to the laws of Texas
- NO CASH

Requirements for Bid Bonds

• For this project, a Bid Bond is not required.

Requirements for Payment and Performance Bonds

Upon selection, the selected firm(s) shall provide the following:

Within ten (10) days of notification of award, the bonds must be made payable, executed, and delivered to the Entity. The name, address, and telephone number of a contact person for the bonding company shall be provided. Upon the request in writing of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of obligations arising under this Contract, the Respondent shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall permit a copy to be made.

Bonds shall be signed by an agent resident in the State of Texas and the date of the bond shall be the date of the execution of this Contract and/or commencement of construction activities. If at any time during the continuance of this Contract the surety of the Respondent's bonds becomes insolvent, the Entity shall have the right to require additional and sufficient sureties which the Respondent shall furnish to the satisfaction of the Entity within ten (10) days after notice to do so. In default thereof, the Respondent may be suspended and all payment or money due to the Respondent withheld.

The Respondent shall deliver the required bonds to the Entity before the commencement of any work at the project site.

All bonds will be reviewed for compliance with the Contract Documents prior to execution of the Contract and/or commencement of construction activities. In the event that the Respondent has any questions concerning the sufficiency of the bonds, the bonds will be referred to the Entity or the Entity's representative for review and decision. All bonds shall be originals. The Respondent shall require the attorney-in-fact who executes the required bonds on behalf of the surety to affix thereto a certified and current copy of the Power of Attorney.

TYPE OF BOND	PARTY REQUIRED TO SUBMIT BOND	WHEN TO SUBMIT	AMOUNT OF BOND
Bid Bond	Respondent	Include with the Respondent's submittal when instructed	See Bid Bond Instructions on previous page
Statement of Bonding Capacity	Respondent	Include with the Respondent's submittal as instructed.	Respondents shall verify their bonding capacity in a statement addressed to the Entity from a certified bonding company authorized to do business in the State of Texas. <u>The letter must clearly state the</u> <u>amount of Firm's bonding capacity to be</u> <u>reserved for the Entity's project(s)</u> . Firm shall carry a bonding capacity equal to the value of the scope of work upon execution of the Contract.
Payment Bond	Selected Firm only	For municipalities, if the contract is in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000), a Payment Bond is required. For counties, if the contract is in excess of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000), a Payment Bond is required. The Payment Bond must be executed by a corporate surety and provided within ten (10) days of award notification.	A Payment Bond in the amount of the total contract price.
Performance Bond	Selected Firm only	If the contract is in excess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000), a Performance Bond must be executed by a corporate surety and provided within ten (10) days of award notification.	A Performance Bond in the amount of the total contract price.

ATTACHMENT G: ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Public servants are expected to conduct themselves impartially and in a manner that inspires public confidence, while ensuring that responsible contractors have fair and equal access to governmental procurement.

Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc is committed to protection of government integrity, while also facilitating the recruitment and retention of the skilled personnel necessary to support its operations. To achieve this objective, Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc has established standards of ethical conduct and conflict of interest policies and expects all vendors, contractors, and subrecipients to adhere to the same core principles as described below.

To achieve these standards, it is essential that those doing business with the Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc also observe the ethical standards prescribed here.

I acknowledge that it is a breach of ethics to attempt to influence any public employee, elected official, or department head to violate the standards of ethical conduct set forth in this code.

I further acknowledge that it is a breach of ethics for any employee of Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc or a vendor doing business with the Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc to participate directly or indirectly in a procurement when the employee or vendor knows that:

- A. The employee or any member of the employee's immediate family or household has a substantial financial interest in a company responding to a Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc procurement.
- B. A business or organization in which the employee or any member of the employee's immediate family has a financial interest pertaining to the procurement.

I understand that it is a breach of ethics to offer, give, or agree to give any employee of Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc , or for any employee to solicit, demand, accept, or agree to accept from a vendor, a gratuity of consequence or any offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparation, or any part of a program requirement or purchase request influencing the content of specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing, or in any other advisory capacity in any proceeding or controversy, any particular matter pertaining to any program requirement, contract or subcontract, or to any solicitation or proposal therefore pending before Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc .

I acknowledge that it is a breach of ethics for any payment, gratuity, or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor for any contract for Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc as an inducement for the award of a contract or order.

I certify that I have read and understand the ethical standards set forth by Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc and agree to comply with them in all business dealings with the Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc.

SIGNATURE, VENDOR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

COMPANY

PRINTED NAME, TITLE

DATE

Instructions

The Respondent must describe any conflicts of interest regarding the goods and/or services associated with this solicitation.

The Respondent shall complete and submit Form CIQ (Attachment I) if the service provider or key employees have conflicts regarding these services.

In the event that a conflict is identified, Respondent must also provide a plan for mitigating the conflict(s).

The Entity may in its sole discretion determine whether a conflict disqualifies a firm, and/or whether a conflict mitigation plan is acceptable.

If the Respondent does not identify a conflict, then they should enter no conflict identified on the Submission Checklist (Attachment A).

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE For vendor doing business with local governmental entity	FORM CIQ	
This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.	OFFICE USE ONLY	
This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).	Date Received	
By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.		
A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.		
1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.		
 Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law recompleted questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th busines you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.) Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed. 	s day after the date on which	
Name of Officer		
 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A). Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary. A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from the vendor? Yes No B. Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the direction of the local government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the 		
local governmental entity?		
5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.		
6 Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(
7		
Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity	Date	
Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us	Revised 1/1/2021	

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A complete copy of Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code may be found at http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1-a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties based on commercial activity of one of the parties. The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or an agency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;

(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or

(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency and that is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):

(a) A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

(2) the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or a family member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable income, other than investment income, that exceeds \$2,500 during the 12-month period preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

 $(\tilde{\mathbf{I}})$ a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or

(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts that have an aggregate value of more than \$100 in the 12-month period preceding the date the officer becomes aware that:

- (i) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or
- (ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a-1)

(a) A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);

(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or

(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity.

(a-1) The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(1) the date that the vendor:

(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local governmental entity; or

(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for proposals or bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the local governmental entity; or

(2) the date the vendor becomes aware:

(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);

(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or

(C) of a family relationship with a local government officer.

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission

www.ethics.state.tx.us

Revised 1/1/2021

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- (a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions.
- (c) The undersigned shall require that the language in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this anti-lobbying certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995).

The Contractor, ______ (insert business name), certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

SIGNATURE	
NAME OF AUTHORIZED AGENT	
TITLE OF AUTHORIZED AGENT	
DATE	

COMPLETE THIS FORM ONLY IF YOUR BID OR OFFER EXCEEDS \$100,000 AND FUNDS HAVE BEEN OR WILL BE PAID FOR LOBBYING ACTIVITIES RELATED TO THIS RFP

1.Type of Federal Action:	2. Status of	Federal Action:	3. Report Type:
□ a. contract □ a. bid/off		fer/application	🗆 a. initial filing
🗆 b. grant	🗆 b. initial	award	🗆 b. material change
c. cooperative agreement	🗌 c. post-a	ward	
🗆 d. Ioan			
🗆 e. Ioan guarantee			
f. loan insurance			
4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:		E If Poporting Entity in	No. 4 is Subawardee, Enter Name
\square Prime \square Subawardee Tier, if k	nown:	and Address of Prime	-
Name:		Name:	
Street Address:		Street Address:	
City, State, Zip:		City, State, Zip:	
Congressional District, if known:		Congressional District, i	f known:
6. Federal Department/Agency:		7. Federal Program Nai	ne/Description:
		CFDA Number, if applicable:	
8. Federal Action Number, if known:		9. Award Amount, if known:	
		\$	
10a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant		10b. Individuals Perfor	ming Services
			if different from No. 10a)
Name (First, MI, Last):		Name (First, MI, Last):	
Street Address:		Street Address:	
City, State, Zip:		City, State, Zip:	
11. Information requested through this form is authorized by Title 31 U.S.C., Section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.			
Signature:			
Name:		Title:	
Telephone:		Date:	
Federal Use Only			l for Local Reproduction Form – LLL (Rev. 7-97)

In accordance with Texas Government Code Sections 2252.001 through 2252.004 (relating to bids by nonresident contractors), the pertinent portion of the Act has been extracted and is as follows:

- 1. "Nonresident bidder" refers to a person who is not a resident.
- 2. "Resident bidder" refers to a person whose principal place of business is in this state, including a contractor whose ultimate parent company or majority owner has its principal place of business in this state.

A governmental entity may not award a governmental contract to a nonresident bidder unless the nonresident underbids the lowest bid submitted by a responsible resident bidder by an amount that is not less than the greater of the following:

- 1. the amount by which a resident bidder would be required to underbid the nonresident bidder to obtain a comparable contract in the state in which the nonresident's principal place of business is located; or
- 2. the amount by which a resident bidder would be required to underbid the nonresident bidder to obtain a comparable contract in the state in which a majority of the manufacturing relating to the contract will be performed.

I certify that	(Company Name) is a
----------------	---------------------

Resident bidder of Texas as defined in Section 2252.001(4), Texas Government Code,

OR

Nonresident bidder as defined in Section 2252.001(3), Texas Government Code, and our principal place of business is located at ______ (City and State).

Note: If the Respondent is an out-of-state company, a Certificate of Authority from the Secretary of State to do business in Texas must be provided.

SIGNATURE	
NAME OF AUTHORIZED AGENT	
TITLE OF AUTHORIZED AGENT	
DATE	

STATE OF TEX	AS	ş
	ł	ş
COUNTY OF _		ş

By the signature below, the signatory for the bidder certifies that neither he/she nor the firm, corporation, partnership or institution represented by the signatory or anyone acting for the firm bidding this project has violated the antitrust laws of this State, codified at Section 15.01, *et seq.*, Texas Business and Commerce Code, or the Federal antitrust laws, nor communicated directly or indirectly the bid made to any competitor or any other person engaged in the same line of business, nor has the signatory or anyone acting for the firm, corporation or institution submitting a bid committed any other act of collusion related to the development and submission of this bid proposal.

Signature:	
Printed Name:	
Title:	
Company:	
Date:	
SUBSCRIBED and sworn to before me the undersigned authority by	on

the _____ day of _____, 20____ on behalf of said bidder.

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

My commission expires: _____

Attachment L – SAMPLE CONTRACT

SAMPLE CONTRACT

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) PROGRAM CONSTRUCTION SERVICES CONTRACT

INTRODUCTION

THIS CONSTRUCTION SERVICES CONTRACT ("Contract") is made and entered into this [Date], by and between **Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc**, Texas, hereinafter referred to as the "Entity" and [Contractor Name], a licensed and insured Construction Contractor in the State of Texas, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor." Entity and Contractor are sometimes each referred to as a "Party" and collectively "Parties."

The following recitals are incorporated in and made a part of this Contract.

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, President Biden signed the U.S. Senate-amended H.R. 1319 (P.L. 117-2) known as the American Rescue Plan Act (hereinafter "ARPA"); and

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2021, the U.S. Treasury issued the Interim Final Rule and on January 6, 2022, issued the Final Rule to implement ARPA in Title 31, Part 35 of the Code of Federal Regulations ("CFR"); and

WHEREAS, under ARPA Section 603 (c)(1)(A) and (3) and the Final Rule 31 CFR 35.6 recipients may use Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds ("SLFRF") to allocate funds for the provision of government services and/or make necessary investments in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the Entity has determined that it has the objective of providing these services to its residents; and

WHEREAS, the Entity has been awarded ARPA SLFRF funds by the U.S. Department of the Treasury ("Treasury") which have been distributed to the Entity from ARPA for covered costs and eligible expenses to be incurred during the period which began on March 3, 2021 (the date ARPA became law) until December 31, 2024 (to be expended by December 31, 2026); and

WHEREAS, Entity has decided to use SLFRF for the "Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry" Project (hereinafter "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Entity desires to disburse funds to the Contractor to administer the Project and perform certain services in connection therewith as set forth in this Contract and in the Scope of Services attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, Contractor has represented to the Entity that it is duly qualified, eligible, and willing to provide the services identified herein and in the Scope of Services attached hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the terms and conditions set forth herein, and in consideration of funding in an amount not to exceed [Spelled out dollar amount here] (\$000,000.00) to be paid to the Contractor by Entity as herein below set forth, the Parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:

SECTION 1. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

SECTION 1.1 CONTACT INFORMATION & NOTICES

For the purposes of this Contract, the Entity's Representative listed below will serve as the Local Program Liaison and primary point of contact for the Contractor. All required progress reports and communication regarding the project shall be directed to this liaison and other local personnel as appropriate. The Contractor shall designate a Representative to act on Contractor's behalf with respect to the Project for all purposes, including (by way of example and not of limitation) execution of Change Orders and Applications for Payment. Contractor's Representative shall be responsible for the day-to-day management of the Work through Final Completion – and must be available as required for the benefit of the Project and Entity.

Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this Contract must be in writing and may be served via email or by depositing same with the United States Postal Service, addressed to the Entity/Contractor Representative for Project, postage prepaid and in registered or certified form, with return receipt required; by hand delivery by reputable courier; or by deposit with Federal Express or other reputable overnight courier for overnight delivery. The initial contact information of the parties, which one party may change by giving written notice to the other party, are as follows:

Entity Name	Contractor Name
Entity Address 1	Contractor Address 1
Entity Address 2	Contractor Address 2
Entity Representative for Project	Contractor Representative for Project
Name	Name
Title	Title
Phone	Phone
Email	Email
Entity Billing Contact	Contractor Billing Contact
Name	Name
Title	Title
Phone	Phone
Email	Email

SECTION 1.2 PARTS INCORPORATED

Parts Incorporated. In addition to the Exhibits identified below which are incorporated into this Contract, it is understood and agreed that additional terms of this Contract are to be performed in accordance with the proposal documents (scope of work, images, and specifications), submitted proposal response and related exhibits, affidavits, addendums, statutory requirements, and the ARPA Terms & Conditions.

	<u>Exhibits</u>
ATTACHMENT A	SOLICITATION RESPONSE COVER SHEET/ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA/
	SUBMISSION CHECKLIST
ATTACHMENT B	PRICING SHEET
ATTACHMENT C	FEDERAL DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION STATUS CERTIFICATION
ATTACHMENT D	CUSTOMER/CLIENT REFERENCES
ATTACHMENT E	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
ATTACHMENT F	PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS
ATTACHMENT G	ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
ATTACHMENT H	TEXAS ETHICS COMMISSION CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES (FORM 1295) (IF
	RESPONDENT IS SELECTED FOR AWARD)
ATTACHMENT I	CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE (FORM CIQ)
ATTACHMENT J	DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES SF-LLL CERTIFICATION
ATTACHMENT K	BIDDER'S CERTIFICATION
ATTACHMENT L	NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

SECTION 1.3 TABLE OF CONTENTS

NTRODUCTION	1
SECTION 1. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION	2
SECTION 2. ENTITY RESPONSIBILITIES	9
SECTION 3. SCOPE OF WORK	9
SECTION 5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	16
SECTION 6. EXHIBITS	19

SECTION 1.4 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

By reference, the Contract Documents consist of:

- a. This Contract and all exhibits listed, contained, or referenced in this Contract.
- b. All Addenda issued before the Effective Date of this Contract;
- c. All Alternates accepted by the Entity before the Effective Date of this Contract;
- d. All Change Orders issued after the Effective Date of this Contract;
- e. The Drawings, Specifications, details, and other documents developed by Project Architect/Engineer to describe the Project and accepted by Entity; and
- f. The response submitted by Contractor in response to the RFP issued by Entity for this Project.

The Contract and Exhibit Documents form the entire and integrated Contract between Entity and Contractor, and supersede all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, written or oral.

To the extent of any conflict between Contractor's Proposal and any other Contract Document, the Contract Documents shall govern.

If there is an irreconcilable difference between or among the various documents that make up the Contract Documents, the interpretation that provides for a higher quality of material and/or workmanship will prevail over all other interpretations.

<u>1.4.1 Term of Contract – Commencement of Work</u>

Entity shall issue a Notice to Proceed (NTP) identifying the date for commencement of the Work. The commencement date shall be as specified in the NTP. Contractor shall achieve substantial completion of the Work within 420 calendar days after the commencement date; as such completion date may be extended by approved Change Orders. THE TIME SET FOR COMPLETION OF THE WORK IS AN ESSENTIAL ELEMENT OF THE CONTRACT.

Reasonably foreseeable adverse weather conditions will not constitute an Excusable Delay. For purposes of this Contract, "reasonably foreseeable adverse weather conditions" means weather conditions in keeping with the historical averages listed by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration on its website, www.noaa.gov.

In any event, all of the services required and performed hereunder shall be completed no later than March 31, 2026.

1.4.2 Schedule

Within ten (10) days of receiving the Notice to Proceed, Contractor shall submit for Entity review and acceptance, a critical path schedule.

1.4.3 Pre-Existing Conditions

Contractor acknowledges that it has been provided access to the existing improvements and conditions on the Project site and that it has thoroughly investigated those conditions. Contractor's investigation was instrumental in preparing its bid to perform the Work. Contractor shall not make or be entitled to any adjustment to the Contract Time or the Contract Sum arising from Project conditions that the Contractor discovered or, in the exercise of reasonable care, should have discovered in Contractor's investigation.

1.4.4 Liquidated Damages

Contractor and Entity agree that a breach of this Contract as to completion time will cause damage to the Entity, but further agree that such damage cannot be accurately measured. Therefore, the Parties agree that \$1,000.00 shall be subtracted from the Contract amount for each and every calendar day that the Work or any portion of the Work remains uncompleted after the expiration of the time period specified in the Notice to Proceed, or as extended by a change order.

The foregoing provision as to liquidated damages constitutes an agreement by the Entity and the Contractor as to the minimum amount of damages the Entity will sustain in any event by reason of the Contractor's failure to complete the Work within the time specified in a Notice to Proceed, or as extended by a change order. The Entity may recover actual damages over and above the minimum amount that result from the Contractor's failure to begin the Work when ordered, carry it forward uninterruptedly after beginning, or complete it within the time specified and in strict accordance with the Plans and Specifications, Work Write-up (Estimated Cost of Repairs or ECR), or Task Order or change orders. The Entity shall have the right to deduct and withhold the amount of any and all damages, whether it be the minimum amount agreed upon or otherwise, from any monies owing the Contractor.

1.4.5 Dispute Resolution

Disputes arising under the Contract shall be submitted to a process of resolution pursuant to alternative dispute resolution practices, such as mediation, binding arbitration, or non-binding arbitration pursuant to industry standards, prior to being submitted to a court for adjudication. It is understood that the Entity shall have the right to request mediation if services being provided are deemed deficient in any way.

1.4.6 Acquisition, Merger, Sale and/or Transfer of Business, etc.

It is understood by all parties that if, during the life of the Contract, the Contractor disposes of his/her business concern by acquisition, merger, sale, and or/transfer or by any means conveys his/her interest(s) to another party, all obligations are transferred to that new party. In this event, the new vendor will be required to submit all documentation/legal instruments that were required in the original bid/contract. Any change shall be approved by the Entity, who retains the right to reject the transfer of the contract.

1.4.7 Termination of Contract For Cause

This Contract may be terminated by the Entity for cause, including any nonperformance by the Contractor; failure of the Contractor to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this Contract; or violation of any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of the Contract, upon thirty (30) days' written notice to Contractor including a statement of the reasons, therefore. The determination of the Entity as to the cause of termination and the appropriateness thereof shall be final and binding upon both Entity and Contractor. Cause for termination shall include any material failure by Contractor to comply with any term of this Contract.

- a. In such event, all finished or unfinished services, documents, data, maps, studies, surveys, drawings, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the Contractor under this Contract shall, at the option of the Entity, become its property, and the Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work satisfactorily completed hereunder.
- b. Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the Entity for damages sustained by the Entity by virtue of any breach of this Contract by the Contractor, and the Entity may withhold any payments to the Contractor for the purposes of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due the Entity from the Contractor is determined.
- c. The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold the Entity harmless from any liability to subcontractors or suppliers concerning payment for work performed or goods supplied arising out of the lawful termination of the Contract by the Entity under this provision.
- d. In case of default by the Contractor, the Entity may procure the goods or services from other sources and hold the Contractor responsible for any excess cost.
- e. Continuation of the terms of the Contract beyond the fiscal year is contingent on availability of funds in the following year's budget. In the event of unavailability of such funds, the Entity reserves the right to cancel the Contract.
- f. If this Contract is terminated for cause, excluding funding discontinuance or disapproval, Contractor shall have the right to attempt to cure its failure during the thirty (30) day period prior to termination to the satisfaction of the Entity at the Entity's sole discretion.

1.4.8 Termination of Contract For Convenience of the Entity

The Entity may terminate this Contract at any time by giving at least thirty (30) days' notice in writing to the Contractor. If the Contractor is terminated by the Entity as provided herein, the Contractor will be paid an amount which bears the same ratio to the total compensation as the services actually performed bear to the total services of the Contractor covered by this Contract, less payments of compensation previously made. If this Contract is terminated due to the fault of the Contractor, Section above relative to termination shall apply.

1.4.9 Post Expiration and Termination Procedures

Upon expiration or in the event of a prior termination, all remaining and unspent grant funds, shall immediately become the sole and separate property of the Entity and the Contractor shall perform all acts and execute all instruments necessary to transfer and assign such funds to the Entity. All finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, reports, and work products prepared by the Contractor under this Contract or with grant funds shall, at the option of the Entity, become Entity's property.

1.4.10 Transitional Period

In the event services are terminated by contract expiration or by voluntary termination by either the Contractor or the Entity, the Contractor shall continue all terms and conditions of said Contract for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days at the Entity's request.

1.4.11 Ownership of Material

The Entity shall retain all of its rights and interest in any and all documents and property, both hard copy and digital furnished by the Entity to the Contractor for the purpose of assisting the Contractor in the performance of this Contract. All such items shall be returned immediately to the Entity at the expiration or termination of the Contract or completion of any related services pursuant thereto, whichever comes first. None of the documents and/or property shall, without the written consent of the Entity, be disclosed to others or used by the Contract. Ownership of all data, materials and documentation originated and prepared for the Entity pursuant to this Contract shall belong exclusively to the Entity. All data, reports, computerized information, programs, and materials related to this Project shall be delivered to and become the property of the Entity upon completion of the Project. The Contractor shall not have the right to use, sell, or disclose the total of the interim or final work products, or make available to third parties, without the prior written consent of the Entity.

SECTION 1.5 CONTRACT SUM AND PAYMENTS

The Contractor shall be compensated per the schedule below. Payment to the Contractor shall be based on satisfactory completion of identified services and/or deliverables and payment/invoicing terms as stated in the proposal, or as mutually agreed upon and contained in this Contract. Payment is expressly contingent upon the availability of ARPA funding.

1.5.1 Contract Sum

Entity shall pay Contractor for performance of its obligations under this Contract, including the Base Proposal and Alternate Proposals (if any), the sum of <u>\$_____</u>, and make payment in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

1.5.2 Payment & Pricing Schedule

A Payment & Pricing Schedule (see Exhibit A2) subdividing the Project into its respective parts, and which includes values for all items comprising the Project will serve as the basis for progress payments made to Contractor throughout the Project. The format and tracking of the original Payment & Pricing Schedule and all updates thereto will be subject to the approval of Entity and/or designated representative(s). At all times, the estimated cost of performing the uncompleted

and unpaid portion of the Work (including Contractor's overhead and profit) shall not exceed the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum (less Retainage on Work previously completed).

1.5.3 Contractor's Payment Obligations

Contractor shall promptly pay all bills for labor and material performed and furnished by others in connection with this Contract.

1.5.4 Inspections and Payment for Construction Services

During the phase of construction services, the following activities apply:

- a. Payments will be made on a monthly basis, with the contractor submitting invoices that reflect the percentage of work completed during the invoicing period. Payment amounts will be proportional to the percentage of the total project completed as verified by the Entity. In general, a progress inspection can be assumed complete if tasks pertaining to that corresponding percentage of the construction value has been completed in-place. Inspection will not be scheduled for incomplete or uninstalled work, or for work that requires a code inspection, and the code inspection has not been completed and approved by the Entity. Inspections are also performed to verify that construction is performed in accordance with approved plans and all applicable construction codes, standards, and specifications. All components must be installed without visible flaws in workmanship and all municipal inspections and the engineer's inspection requirements applicable to the construction must be completed and approved. A ten percent (10%) retainage will be withheld on each payment that would be reimbursed.
- b. Firm shall submit a request for payment upon completion of each milestone as described in the executed construction contract document. Deliverables will be considered complete only upon inspection and written acceptance by the Entity. Each request for payment shall include deliverable(s) completed and the price for each. No charges may be billed unless such costs are explicitly included in the construction contract.
- c. The selected Firm(s) are eligible for final payment once a COO is provided, and the construction passes the final inspection performed by the Entity. The final inspection is complete when all items on the scope of work have been completed, all mechanical systems are working properly, all interior and exterior electrical systems are working, all plumbing systems are working and draining, and all other systems or appurtenances installed or repaired as part of this scope are working or completed.
- d. Firm(s) are eligible for the 10% retainage payment thirty (30) days after passing final inspection and completion of all punch list items. If determined necessary by the Entity, proof of payment to subcontractors may be requested.

1.5.5 Request for Payment

As instructed, all payment requests must be submitted on an approved form of Request for Payment including required attachments. Notwithstanding the certification of Contractor's payment applications, the Entity or its Representative will independently review Contractor's payment applications and make a determination as to the amount properly payable to Contractor.

- a. Contractor shall submit all receipts, invoices with check vouchers or other evidence of payment, petty cash account information, payrolls, and any and all other evidence required by Entity or its designated Representative as it deems necessary to support the amount requested.
- b. Contractor shall include required attachments identifying payments to HUBs and to all Subcontractors. Payments to Subcontractors included in an Application for Payment will not exceed the percentage of Work allocable to such Subcontractors for each respective Schedule of Values classification which has been actually completed and will not exceed the total value of the subcontract amount.

c. Contractor shall include Certified Payrolls and other required documents in support of Texas Prevailing Wage requirements or federal Davis-Bacon compliance.

1.5.6 Offsets; Deductions; Withholding

- a. Entity is an agency of the State of Texas and materials and services utilized in the construction of the Project may be exempt from state and local taxes. Contractor is responsible for taking full advantage of all tax exemptions applicable to the Project. Entity will deduct from the Applications for Payment and from the request for Final Payment any taxes paid for materials or services that were entitled to tax exemption.
- b. Amounts assessed as liquidated damages per the above Section of this Contract and other amounts to which Entity is entitled by way of setoff or recovery, if any, shall be deducted from any amounts due Contractor.
- c. Notwithstanding any other contractual provision to the contrary, Entity may withhold any payment from Contractor to the extent reasonably required to protect Entity interests under any of the following circumstances: failure to perform work in accordance with Contract Documents; insufficient documentation in Application for Payment; violations of Prevailing Wage/Davis-Bacon requirements; failure to pay Subcontractors, employees, hired laborers or materials suppliers; failure to obtain, renew or maintain insurance coverage as required in this Contract; failure to meet schedule requirements or other scenarios that causes the Entity, in good faith judgment, to determine that the remaining balance will not be sufficient to complete the Work in accordance with this Contract. The right to withhold payment is contingent on giving Contractor a minimum of seven (7) calendar days' written notice of specific defects or defaults and an opportunity to cure same, and on Contractor's failure to cure or to take diligent steps to cure within such seven (7) calendar days.

1.5.7 Final Payment

Contractor's request for Final Payment must not be made until all Work is completed, all requirements of the Contractor Documents have been satisfied, and Contractor delivers:

- a. A complete release of all liens arising out of the Work;
- b. Written consent of surety to release Final Payment; and
- c. An affidavit that, to the best of the Contractor's information or knowledge, the release includes and covers all materials and services over which Contractor has control and for which a lien could be filed, subject only to the Final Payment by Entity.

Alternatively, Contractor may furnish a bond satisfactory to Entity to indemnify Entity against any lien. If any lien remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, Contractor shall refund to Entity all money the Entity may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien, including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, and Entity shall have all remedies at law and in equity.

Acceptance by Contractor (or Contractor's successors) of Final Payment under this Contract, will constitute a full and complete release of Entity from any and all claims, demands and causes of action whatsoever which Contractor or Contractor's successors have or may have against the Entity under the provisions of this Contract for payment for the Work except for those previously made in writing and identified by Contractor as unsettled at the time of the final request for payment.

SECTION 2. ENTITY RESPONSIBILITIES

SECTION 2.1 GENERAL

- a. Entity will cooperate in a timely manner in providing information to the other members of the Project Team regarding its requirements for the Project.
- b. Entity will provide the general schedule, setting the plan for milestone dates and completion of the Project.
- c. If the Entity has actual knowledge of any fault or defect in the Project or non-conformance with the Drawings and Specifications, the Entity shall give prompt written notice of such fault, defect, or non-conformance to Contractor.
- d. The Entity may designate one or more construction inspectors of its own who will be given access to the Work as requested or needed. The provision of such inspectors will not reduce or lessen in any respect Contractor's responsibilities for the Work.
- e. The Entity may furnish or obtain all legal, accounting, auditing, and insurance counseling services for itself as may be necessary for the Project.

SECTION 3. SCOPE OF WORK

SECTION 3.1 GENERAL

Contractor has overall responsibility for and shall furnish all materials, equipment, tools, and labor necessary and reasonably inferable to complete the Work, or any phase of the Work, in accordance with Entity's requirements and the terms of the Contract Documents, including the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, details, and other documents prepared by Project Architect/Engineer and listed in the attached Exhibits. Implicit in Contractor's obligations is the provision of and payment for all labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, temporary facilities and other facilities and services necessary or reasonably inferable for proper execution and completion of the Project, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated into the Project, and complete the Project in an expeditious and economical manner consistent with the interests of the Entity and in accordance with the schedule.

Contractor's duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the Entity nor shall Contractor be released from any liability by reason of such approval by Entity, it being understood that Entity at all times is ultimately relying upon Contractor's skill and knowledge in performing the services required hereunder.

SECTION 3.2 PROJECT CONTROL

Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work and shall be solely responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures for the Work. Contractor shall promptly correct any defective or non-conforming Work at Contractor's sole expense and without cost to Entity.

SECTION 3.3 SUBCONTRACTORS

Contractor shall award and enter into all Subcontracts necessary and appropriate to provide all labor and materials for the construction of the Project.

- a. Contractor shall monitor the Work of the Subcontractors as required and coordinate such Work with the activities and responsibilities of the Project Team with a goal to attain Substantial Completion not later than the date for Substantial Completion and at a cost not to exceed the Contract Sum.
- b. Contractor shall inspect the Work of Subcontractor to ensure conformance with the Contract Documents without assuming Project Architect's responsibilities.

c. Upon request, Contractor shall provide Entity with complete, unaltered copies of all Subcontracts, and all amendments thereto.

SECTION 3.4 PREVAILING WAGE/DAVIS-BACON

Contractor shall maintain strict enforcement of State of Texas Prevailing Wage laws

SECTION 3.5 HUB SUBCONTRACTING PLAN

Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the HUB Subcontracting Plan and shall not make any changes to the HUB Subcontracting Plan without Entity's written approval.

SECTION 3.6 KEY TASKS

- a. Management of all construction phases (specific to the construction scope of work) to include but not limited to site prep/grading, foundation (including all underground plumbing, electrical and gas line), demolition, lead paint/asbestos assessments and abatement, dry-in (framing, exterior doors, windows, roofing, weatherization and exterior siding/masonry), rough-in (plumbing, mechanical, electrical and gas), insulation, drywall, interior trim/doors, painting, carpet and flooring, cabinets and countertop, finish (electrical, plumbing, mechanical & gas), hookup and punch list.
- b. Maintain a pool of general/subcontractors, Architectural or Engineering (A/E) Firms, and other trades adequate to complete construction adhering to Entity's requirements and time constraints identified in this document.
- c. Provide timely payments to sub-consultants, general/subcontractors, trades, etc.
- d. Obtain or ensure that all necessary permits to perform demolition and/or construction activities as required, and that Certificates of Compliance (as applicable) are issued and properly documented.
- e. Provide a warranty on all completed construction. At a minimum, a one-year warranty for workmanship and materials and a 10-year warranty for structure, and an appliance warranty from the manufacturer shall be provided.
- f. Perform periodic monitoring of construction during all construction phases. Contractor shall provide an assigned superintendent at each project site and notify the Entity of the assignment or reassignment of superintendent within forty-eight (48) hours. The Entity reserves the right to require a superintendent to be on-site during all construction and establish a maximum ratio of projects for each superintendent.
- g. Participate in progress inspections performed by the Entity inspectors (or assignees) to ensure compliance with construction requirements, applicable building codes, zoning requirements, plan specifications and minimum structural elevation per the Federal Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA) Elevation Certificate (if applicable).
- When applicable, provide wage rate documentation (or certified payrolls) on a weekly basis or as directed by Entity. Allow for access to the site to interview employees and provide photographs of required on-site (location TBD) signage per requirements of Texas Prevailing Wage/Federal Davis-Bacon compliance.
- i. Provide excellent customer service for others impacted during construction activities. Firm shall be responsive to requests and communicate on a regular basis with the Entity; coordinate relocation issues such as utility connects/disconnects, schedules, storage; and ensure that those impacted by construction are fully informed of the construction process.

- j. Provide and maintain all original and copies of supporting documentation to include but not limited to construction draws, liens, releases from vendors, subcontractors; and suppliers.
- k. Furnish progress reporting as determined or requested by the Entity.
- I. Coordinate with local governmental jurisdictions, homeowner associations, and other jurisdictions as appropriate to complete projects.
- m. Support and assist the Entity during state/federal monitoring or auditing activities, including providing financial information, reports, site visits, and other requests that may be required.

SECTION 3.7 PRECONSTRUCTION SERVICES

During the phase of preconstruction services, the following activities are performed:

- a. Procure in advance or establish reliable supply chains for materials, equipment, supplies, and appurtenances with long lead items.
- b. Perform procurement of early trade work.
- c. Submit sample boards of materials (i.e., cabinets, carpet, hardware, paint, etc.) for review and approval of the Entity.
- d. Prepare and maintain a detailed schedule.
- e. Work collaboratively with design team and review drawings for submittal to the Entity for final approval.

SECTION 3.8 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

During the phase of construction services, the following activities are performed:

- a. Contractor shall meet with assigned Entity contact (or assignee) to review selections of construction materials.
- b. Contractor will be responsible for coordinating with appropriate departments for shutoff and timely reconnection of all utilities. Contractor shall be responsible for managing all utility-related issues associated with demolition and/or construction.
- c. Contractor is responsible for demolition of damaged structure, if specified in the scope of work. All demolition activities and disposal of demolition/construction debris must follow applicable local, state, and federal guidelines, laws, and regulations.
- d. Contractor shall obtain or ensure that all necessary permits for demolition and construction are issued and properly documented, Certificates of Occupancy are issued and properly documented, and provide foundation location and as-built surveys to confirm that construction is compliant with elevation and setback building line requirements.
- e. Contractor shall provide construction services in accordance with Entity building codes and within the prescribed construction timelines and approved schedule.
- f. Contractor is responsible for performing abatement activities per the Asbestos assessment as included in the project scope of work. All work must be properly documented, and proper clearances obtained prior to re-occupation of the building.

- g. Contractor shall provide administrative, management, and related services to coordinate scheduled activities and responsibilities of their general contractors, subcontractors, and trades with each other to manage construction schedule. Contractor is allowed to self-perform construction and are responsible for coordinating and scheduling their own construction services.
- h. Contractor shall visit and thoroughly inspect the project sites and any structures or other manmade features to be modified.
- i. Contractor shall coordinate and manage the scope of work to be performed by their subcontractors through final acceptance, including punch-list work. Contractor shall be responsible for keeping the services on schedule and ensuring that the subcontractors furnish materials and perform work according to the approved scope of work and construction plans.
- j. Contractor shall have the authority over their general contractors/subcontractors to require prompt execution of the work and to give instructions to require corrective actions, whenever such action may be necessary in its opinion to ensure proper execution of the Contract Documents and/or to protect the interests of the Entity.
- k. As requested by the Entity, Contractor shall provide routine reports regarding quality control inspections to ensure progress and quality of construction, adherence to schedule, and conformance with applicable construction standards.
- I. Contractor shall coordinate their trades, subcontractors, and other construction personnel to ensure that the quantity, quality, fitness, and progress of the work is in compliance with the Contract requirements. All work is subject to the final review of the Entity, or assignee. The Entity will not routinely require prior approval of these actions but reserves the right to review and approve at its sole discretion.
- m. The Respondent shall be responsible for all material testing requirements as outlined in the Geotechnical Report. All test results and related documentation must be submitted to the Engineer for review and approval

SECTION 3.9 SCHEDULING

Contractor is solely responsible for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents on or before the date specified in the Schedule.

SECTION 3.10 MEETINGS

Contractor shall attend Project progress meeting scheduled by Entity and/or its Representative no less often than once per month, but in any event as often as required for the proper coordination of the Project, and fully advise the Project Team at such meetings as to Project status. Contractor shall also schedule direct and attend regular Project Team meetings to discuss jointly such matters as procedures, progress, problems, and scheduling. Prior to each meeting, Contractor shall prepare and distribute to the other Project Team members a written agenda for the meeting. At each Project Team meeting, Contractor shall distribute a memorandum setting forth the list of critical activities that require immediate action and the date(s) by when the activity must be completed, and record and distribute the minutes of each meeting.

SECTION 3.11 CHANGES

Contractor shall use Entity's forms for review and processing Change Proposals, Change Orders, and requests for information.

SECTION 3.12 DOCUMENTS, SHOP DRAWINGS AND SUBMISSIONS

Project Architect shall be the interpreter of the design intent of the Construction Documents, subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement between Project Architect and Entity; provided, however, Contractor shall request such

interpretations from Project Architect, from time to time, in order to facilitate Contractor's accomplishment of its duties under this Contract. In the event that the Contractor believes the interpretation of Project Architect is not reasonably inferable from the design documents and/or not in conformance with industry standards and said interpretation increases the cost and/or extends the construction schedule, then Contractor may request dispute resolution.

- a. In collaboration with the other members of the Project Team, establish and implement procedures for expediting the processing and Project Architect's approval of shop drawings and other submissions in accordance with the Project specifications.
- b. Receive from the Subcontractors and review all shop drawings and other submissions for conformance with the Contract Documents. Coordinate shop drawing and other submission with the Contract Documents and other related documents prior to transmitting them to other members of the Project Team.
- c. Maintain at the Project site and make available to Entity, updated records of all drawings, a current set of as-built Drawings and Specifications, examples, purchases, materials, equipment, maintenance and operating manuals and instructions, and other construction related documents, including all changes and revisions, a directory of personnel, Project correspondence, inspection procedures (prepared by the entities conducting inspections), testing laboratory procedures (prepared by the testing laboratories), contract changes, time extensions, progress payment data, Final Acceptance procedures, and instructions from Entity.
- d. Coordinate and facilitate the creation of record and as-built drawings, and the procurement of warranties and guarantees. Contractor shall maintain and deliver the documents describing all changes or deviations from the Construction Documents that occurred during construction and that reflect the actual "As Built" conditions of the completed Work.

SECTION 3.13 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of specifications as to any detail, or the apparent omission from it of a detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practice is to prevail and that only material and workmanship of the finest quality shall be used. All interpretations of specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement. The Contractor should request clarification from the Entity as specified in this document.

SECTION 3.14 NON-CONFORMING WORK

Entity may reject any defective or non-conforming Work on the Project of which Entity becomes aware and Contractor shall promptly correct any such defect at Contractor's own cost without increasing the Contract Sum. Upon discovering that any portion of the Work does not conform with Entity's design concept and/or requirements, including the Design Guidelines and Standard Specifications, due to an error or omission in any Construction Document materials prepared or furnished by or on behalf of Contractor, Contractor shall promptly correct such condition at no additional cost to Entity. If Contractor refuses or fails to correct (or improperly corrects) any such condition within a reasonable time after notice, Entity may cause the condition to be corrected and offset the cost of such correction against any monies owed to Contractor; provided, however, if no monies are owed Contractor at the time the condition is discovered or at the time the condition is corrected by Entity, Contractor shall promptly reimburse Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry & Support Center Inc for all expenses incurred to correct the condition. Contractor shall warranty all corrective Work, whether performed by or through Contractor or by a third party retained by Entity in accordance with the immediately preceding sentence due to Contractor's refusal or failure to correct properly any non-conforming Work.

SECTION 3.15 ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH, AND SAFETY

Contractor's Safety Plan shall include recommendations and information to Entity and its Representative regarding the assignment of responsibilities for safety precautions and programs, temporary Project facilities and equipment, materials, and services for common use of the Subcontractors. Contractor shall verify that appropriate safety provisions are included in the Construction Documents. The existence of any Entity-controlled insurance programs will not operate to diminish

or eliminate Contractor's responsibilities under this Contract. Entity agrees that Entity will not be providing any Subcontractors.

During the phase of construction services, the following activities are to be performed:

- a. The Firm shall have detailed procedures addressing environmental risks, safety hazards, and provide mitigation methods. The Firm shall identify and ensure that all Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) required for performing services is utilized.
- b. All health and safety complaints must be addressed immediately, and the Entity must be notified of the complaints and proposed resolutions within twenty-four (24) hours.
- c. Investigation, removal, and disposal of all hazardous materials shall be addressed in accordance with all applicable construction/environmental and any other federal, state, and local laws and regulations.
- d. All construction activities shall be performed in compliance with applicable Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) safety regulations and other applicable laws.

SECTION 3.16 CERTIFICATION OF NO ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIALS OR WORK

- a. Contractor shall provide a certification statement, included with each materials submittal, stating that no asbestos containing materials or work is included within the scope of the proposed submittal.
- b. Contractor's certification shall be delivered to Entity at Substantial Completion.
- c. Contractor shall take whatever measures it reasonably deems necessary to ensure that all employees and Subcontractors (including suppliers and fabricators), and their assigns, comply with the requirements of this section.
- d. Each Subcontractor shall provide a notarized statement that no Asbestos Containing Building Materials (ACBM) has been used, provided, or left on this Project with each of its/his/her invoice.
- e. Contractor shall provide to the extent deemed necessary for compliance by the State data sheets and/or labels as proof of compliance.

SECTION 3.17 RECORD KEEPING & RETENTION

Contractor shall establish and maintain a numbering and tracking system for all Project records, including modifications thereto, requests for information, submittals, and supplementary instructions, and shall provide updated records at each update meeting and when requested. During the Construction Phase, Contractor shall submit detailed progress reports, as requested by Entity, that include a description of the Project status, a summary update of the Work by Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) division, photographs, updated and currents schedules and logs, and any other information necessary to convey the progress of the Work.

SECTION 3.18 INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor covenants and agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend, at its own sole expense, the Entity and its officers, agents, servants, and employees from and against any and all claims or suits for property loss or damage and/or personal injury, including death, to any and all persons, of whatsoever kind or character, whether real or asserted, arising out of or in connection with the execution, performance, attempted performance, or nonperformance of the services under this Contract and/or the operations, activities, and services of the activities described herein; and Contractor hereby assumes all liability and responsibility of the entity and its officers, agents, servants, and employees for any and all claims or suits for property loss or damage and/or personal injury, including death, to any and all persons, of whatsoever kinds

or character, whether real or asserted, arising out of or in connection with the execution, performance, attempted performance, or nonperformance of the services or this Contract and/or the operations, activities, and services described herein. Contractor likewise covenants and agrees to and does hereby indemnify and hold harmless entity from and against any and all injury, damage, or destruction of property of entity, arising out of or in connection with all acts or omissions of Contractor, its officers, members, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, licensees, and project participants. Contractor agrees to and shall release Entity, its agents, employees, officers, and legal representatives from all liability for injury, death, damage, or loss to persons or property sustained in connection with or incidental to performance of the services under this Contract.

Contractor shall require all of its contractors and subcontractors to include in its contracts and subcontracts a release and indemnity in favor of the Entity in substantially the same form as above. The indemnity and liability release provided for above shall not apply to any liability resulting from the sole negligence or fault of the Entity, its officers, agents, employees or separate contractors, and in the event of joint and concurring negligence or fault of the Entity and Contractor, responsibility and indemnity, if any, shall be apportioned in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without waiving any governmental immunity available to the entity under Texas law and without waiving any defenses of the parties under Texas law.

The provisions of this section are solely for the benefit of the parties and are not intended to create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any other person or entity. This section survives termination or expiration of this Contract.

SECTION 3.19 INSURANCE & BONDING

Contractor shall provide Insurance and Performance, and Payment Bonds as prescribed by Entity in the Solicitation documentation and included here as Exhibit E and Exhibit F.

SECTION 4. REQUIRED PROVISIONS

The Contractor shall comply with the following items:

SECTION 4.1 TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of Section 503 of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), regulations adopted by Treasury pursuant to Section 603(f) of the Act, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing. Contractor also specifically agrees to comply with the ARPA Terms & Conditions attached to this Contract in Exhibit B.

SECTION 4.2 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

Contractor has provided proof of registration, active/good standing, and non-debarment status in the System for Award Management. Should this status change – the contractor must notify the Entity immediately.

SECTION 4.3 ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI

The Contractor shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury's Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. Title VI also includes protection to persons with "Limited English Proficiency" in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as implemented by the Department of the Treasury's Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

SECTION 4.4 LOBBYING CERTIFICATION & DISCLOSURE

a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an

officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

SECTION 4.5 ETHICS MATTERS

Contractor and its employees, agents, representatives, and subcontractors have ready and understand the Entity's Conflict of Interest Policy, State of Texas Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Provisions available at <u>Government Code</u> <u>Chapter 572: Personal Financial Disclosure, Standards of Conduct, and Conflict of Interest (state.tx.us)</u>, and applicable state ethics laws and rules available. Neither Contractor nor its employees, agents, representatives, or subcontractors will assist or cause Entity employees to violate the Conflict of Interest policies, provisions described by State of Texas Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Provisions, or applicable state ethics laws or rules.

SECTION 4.6 MAINTENANCE AND ACCESS TO RECORDS

The Contractor shall maintain records and financial documents sufficient to evidence in compliance with Section 603(c) of the Act, Treasury's regulations implementing that section, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing.

The Treasury Office of Inspector General, the Government Accountability Office and the Texas Office of the State Comptroller, or their authorized representatives, shall have the right of access to records (electronic and otherwise) of the Contractor in order to conduct audits or other investigations and all records shall be made available upon request. Records shall be maintained by the Contractor for a period of five (5) years after all funds have been expended or returned to the Treasury, whichever is later.

SECTION 5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 5.1 GENERAL

- a. This Contract shall be binding upon and ensure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors, and assigns where permitted by this Contract.
- b. In any case one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Contract shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.
- c. If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms of this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees, costs, and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled.
- d. This Contract may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties hereto and a writing to be attached to be incorporated into this Contract.
- e. Licenses, Permits, Taxes, Fees, Laws, and Regulations

- i. Contractor warrants that it will obtain, maintain in effect, and pay the cost for all licenses, permits, or certifications that may be necessary for Contractor's performance of this Contract.
- ii. Contractor will be responsible for the payment of all taxes, excises, fees, payroll deductions, employee benefits (if any), fines, penalties or other payments required by federal, state, or local law or regulation in connection with Contractor's performance of this Contract.
- iii. Contractor will comply with and will be responsible for requiring its officers and employees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, and the rules and regulations of the Entity.

SECTION 5.2 CAPACITY TO PERFORM

By execution of this Contract, Contractor is certifying that they have the capacity to perform and complete the Scope of Work as provided.

SECTION 5.3 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Except for the obligation of Entity to pay Contractor certain fees, costs, and expenses to the extent expressly set forth in this Contract, the Entity shall have no liability to Contractor or to anyone claiming through or under Contractor by reason of the execution or performance of this Contract. Notwithstanding any obligation or liability of Entity to Contractor, no present or future partner or affiliate of the Entity or any agent, officer, director, or employee of the Entity or anyone claiming under the Entity, has or shall have any personal liability to Contractor or to anyone claiming through or under Contractor by reason of the execution or performance of this Contractor.

SECTION 5.4 ASSIGNMENT

This Contract is a personal service contract for the services of Contractor, and neither Contractor's interest in this Contract (including, but not limited to Contractor's fees due hereunder), nor Contractor's duties hereunder may be assigned or delegated to a third party except as specifically set forth in this Contract.

SECTION 5.5 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE

The Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of Section 603 of the Act, regulations adopted by Treasury pursuant to Section 603(f) of the Act, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing.

Additionally, all applicable local government codes for the State of Texas also apply to this Contract. All equipment, supplies, and work furnished under this Contract shall comply with applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations. Contractor shall obtain and pay for such permits and inspections as are required for the legal performance of this work, unless otherwise specified. Contractor shall comply with all federal and state laws and Entity's Ordinances and Codes applicable to the Contractor's operation under this Contract. These Specifications and the Contract resulting here from shall be fully governed by the laws of the State of Texas and shall be fully performable in City of Bastrop, Texas, where venue for any proceeding arising hereunder will lie.

This Contract will be governed by the laws of the State of Texas without reference to its conflicts of law provisions. Venue for any suits arising from this Contract will be in a court of competent jurisdiction in City of Bastrop, Texas.

SECTION 5.6 WAIVERS

No delay or omission by either Party in exercising any right or power accruing upon the non-compliance or failure of performance by the other Party of any provision of this Contract or the Contract Documents will impair any such right or power or be construed to be a waiver thereof. A waiver by either Party of any of the covenants, conditions, or agreements of this Contract or any of the Contract Documents to be performed by the other party will not be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of this Contract or the Contract Documents or of any other covenant, condition or agreement contained in this Contract or the Contract Documents.

SECTION 5.7 AMENDMENTS

The Contract Documents may not be changed, altered, or amended in any way except in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each Party.

SECTION 5.8 BINDING

The Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties to this Contract and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

SECTION 5.9 APPOINTMENT

Contractor shall act only upon instructions from the Entity's Designated Representative unless the Entity advises the Contractor otherwise in writing.

SECTION 5.10 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Contract is for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Contract and this Contract will be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable provision had not been in included herein.

SECTION 5.11 NEW LAWS

Parties agree that if there is a change in any laws, rules, or regulations affecting the Project and enacted after the Effective Date of this Contract, the Parties will enter into good faith negotiations to renegotiate the affected terms of this Contract.

IN WITNESSETH WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract by causing the same to be signed on the day and year first above written.

BY:

(Local City/County Official)

(Printed Name)

(Title)

BY:

(Firm's/Contractor's Authorized Representative)

(Printed Name)

(Title)

SECTION 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit A1	Scope of Work
Exhibit A2	Payment & Pricing Schedule
Exhibit A3	Request for Payment
Exhibit B	ARPA Required Provisions (ARPA Terms & Conditions)
Exhibit C	Prevailing Wage Decision
Exhibit D	Other Relevant Information/Special Conditions for Construction
Exhibit E	Insurance Certificate
Exhibit F	Performance, and Payment Bonds
Exhibit G	Eligibility Verification (SAM.gov)
Exhibit H	Certificate of Interested Parties (Form 1295)

Exhibit A1 – Scope of Work

Phasing and Timeline:

The first phase of the project is expected to take approximately one year to complete. During this time, a new main building will be constructed on the site. This phase will include site preparation, foundation work, structural framing, and the installation of exterior and interior finishes. Utility connections, including water, sewer, electricity, gas, and internet, will also be established during this phase. Importantly, the existing Fayette Building will remain operational throughout Phase 1, ensuring that the Food Pantry's activities continue without disruption.

Phase 2, which will commence after the completion of the main building, is expected to last for three months. During this phase, the focus will shift to renovating the Fayette Building. This renovation will transform the building into a Community Nutrition Education Center, featuring a commercial kitchen, a computer lab, and dedicated spaces for various community programs.

Demolition and Asbestos Removal:

Before the new construction begins, asbestos must be removed from an existing house on the property. This critical step will be conducted following detailed specifications already in place, with oversight provided by a qualified consultant to ensure compliance with safety regulations. Once the asbestos has been safely removed, the house, along with the remaining mobile home on the property, will be demolished. It is worth noting that while two mobile homes were initially indicated on the plans, one has already been removed, leaving only one structure to be demolished.

Offsite Road Improvements to Pine Street:

In addition to the on-site work, the project includes offsite road improvements to Pine Street. These improvements will involve upgrading the roadway and creating parking areas, all of which will be constructed according to the City of Bastrop's standards and specifications. To facilitate smooth access during the construction process and to ensure that the new facility is easily accessible upon completion, it is recommended that these road improvements be completed before the main building construction begins. However, if scheduling constraints arise, the roadwork can be coordinated concurrently with the building construction.

The City of Bastrop has agreed to reimburse the costs associated with these offsite improvements. To ensure a smooth reimbursement process, all invoicing related to the road improvements should be separated from other project costs.

Utility Connections:

As part of the site preparation, the contractor will be responsible for capping all existing utilities at their main points. New utility connections, including water, sewer, electricity, gas, and internet, will be established to support the new main building. The gas connection, in particular, will be routed to a backup generator to ensure continuous operation during power outages. All utility installations will adhere to local codes and standards, and coordination with utility providers will be crucial to ensure timely completion.

Operation of the Fayette Building:

The Fayette Building currently serves as a vital part of the Food Pantry, providing essential space for food storage and distribution. During Phase 1, while the new main building is under construction, the Fayette Building will remain operational to continue these activities. Once the main building is completed and the Food Pantry operations are relocated there, Phase 2 will commence, focusing on the renovation of the Fayette Building. After the renovation, the Fayette Building will transition into a Community Nutrition Education Center.

Predevelopment Meeting with the City:

Before any demolition or construction activities begin, a predevelopment meeting with the City of Bastrop will be held. This meeting is essential to ensure that all required permits are obtained and that the project complies with local regulations. Attendees at the meeting will include representatives from the contractor, civil engineering team, architectural team, and the city. The agenda will cover the project scope, demolition plans, construction permits, and any other regulatory requirements. This meeting will provide an opportunity to address potential issues, clarify expectations, and ensure that the project is set up for success from the outset. The terms for payment for the contract are as follows:

Payment Schedule:

3.4.9.1 Payments will be made on a monthly basis, with the contractor submitting invoices that reflect the percentage of work completed during the invoicing period. Payment amounts will be proportional to the percentage of the total project completed as verified by the Entity. In general, a progress inspection can be assumed complete if tasks pertaining to that corresponding percentage of the construction value has been completed in-place. Inspection will not be scheduled for incomplete or uninstalled work, or for work that requires a code inspection, and the code inspection has not been completed and approved by the Entity. Inspections are also performed to verify that construction is performed in accordance with approved plans and all applicable construction codes, standards, and specifications. All components must be installed without visible flaws in workmanship and all municipal inspections and the engineer's inspection requirements applicable to the construction must be completed and approved. A ten percent (10%) retainage will be withheld on each payment that would be reimbursed.

Pricing Schedule:

Prices for all goods and/or services shall be all inclusive. Pricing offered shall be valid for ninety (90) days from response due date. The Entity is exempt from taxes. DO NOT INCLUDE TAX IN YOUR PRICING SUBMITTAL.

Lump Sum Price: Respondent shall provide a Lump Sum Price for each component of work as indicated below to complete the scope of services contained in Exhibit A – Project Scope of Work in accordance with the plans & specifications In Exhibit D. Costs include all construction services, labor, materials, project management, profit, bonding, insurance, permitting, general conditions, profit, and other costs to provide a turnkey product.

Project Name:		
Contractor Name:		
Date of Request:		
Contact Name:		
Contact Phone:	Contact Email:	

Item for Payment	Description	Unit Cost or Percent Complete	# of Units	Total Amount
TOTAL				

Х	Attachments

Submitted By		
Name and Title		
Signature		

CERTIFICATION: I certify that this Request for Payment contains costs associated with the provision of services in accordance with the terms of the contract. I also certify that all required documentary evidence has been submitted along with the Request for Payment as instructed, including any documentation associated with requirement to pay prevailing wages.

By signing this Request for Payment, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that information provided in this Request is true, complete, and accurate. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise.

WARNING: Section 1001 of Title 18 U.S. code makes it a criminal offense to make willful, false statements or misrepresentation of any material fact involving the use of or obtain federal funds.

Exhibit B – ARPA Required Provisions

2 CFR 200.327 Contract provisions. The Non-Federal entity's contracts should contain applicable provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200—Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards. The Non-Federal entity's contracts must contain the provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200—Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards, as applicable.

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	2 CFR 200 Appendix II (A-L)		
>\$250,000 (Simplified Acquisition Threshold)	Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by <u>41 U.S.C. 1908</u> , must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (A)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
>\$10,000	All contracts in excess of \$10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the Non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (B)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
	Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under <u>41 CFR Part 60</u> , all contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in <u>41 CFR Part 60-1.3</u> must include the equal opportunity clause provided under <u>41 CFR 60-1.4(b)</u> , in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (<u>30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965</u> Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at <u>41 CFR part 60</u> , "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."		
None	condition of any grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee involving federally and	APPENDIX II (C)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ
	The [recipient] hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as defined in the regulations of the Secretary of Labor at 41 CFR Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any Federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, the following equal opportunity clause:		Subrecipients
	 During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: (1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 		

PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:		
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment		
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and		
selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in		
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to		
be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.		
(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive		
consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual		
orientation, gender identity, or national origin.		
(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has		
inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or		
applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to		
instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information		
of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job		
functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to		
individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an		
investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted		
by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.		
(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with		
which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section and shall post		
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.		
(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.		
(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the		
Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.		
(7) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this		
contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or		
federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other		
sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.		
(8) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding		
paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued purculant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246		
the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any		
subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:		
Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the		

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.		
	The [recipient] further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, that if the [recipient] so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.		
	The [recipient] agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the recipient agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.		
	The recipient further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the [recipient] agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the [recipient] under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such [recipient]; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.		
>\$10,000,000 for ARPA but State Provision Applies at any amount and/or >\$2,000 for CDBG/Braided Funds Projects See TX Prevailing Wage Laws	Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (<u>40 U.S.C. 3141-3148</u>). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of \$10,000,00 awarded by Non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (<u>40 U.S.C. 3141-3144</u> , and <u>3146-3148</u>) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (<u>29 CFR Part 5</u> , "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The Non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The Non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (D)	Contractor RFP/IFB Subrecipients
	The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by		

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The Non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.		
>\$100,000	Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (<u>40 U.S.C. 3701-3708</u>). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the Non-Federal entity in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with <u>40 U.S.C. 3702</u> and <u>3704</u> , as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (<u>29 CFR Part 5</u>). Under <u>40 U.S.C. 3702</u> of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of <u>40 U.S.C. 3704</u> are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (E)	Contractor RFP/IFB Subrecipients
None	Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (F)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
>\$150,000	Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended – Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of \$150,000 must contain a provision that requires the Non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (G)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
>\$25,000	Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) – A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (H)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
>\$100,000	Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) – Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding \$100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with Non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Non-Federal award.	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (I) and 24 CFR §570.303	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
	 See 2 CFR §200.323- Procurement of Recovered Materials. Where applicable, in the performance of contract, pursuant to 2 CFR 200.323, the contractor must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded \$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines. To the extent that the scope of work or specifications in the contract requires the contractor to provide recovered materials the scope of work or specifications are modified to require that as follows. i. In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired— 1. Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule; 2. Meeting contract performance requirements; or 3. At a reasonable price. ii. Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at EPA's Comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cogr. program. iii. The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the "Solid Waste Disposal Act." 	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (J)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	 See 2 CFR §200.216- Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment (a) Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to: Procure or obtain; Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or Extend or renew a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in <u>Public Law 115-232</u>, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveilance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hitvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment of a covered foreign country. In implementing the prohibition under <u>Public Law 115-232</u>, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (K)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
	 See 2 CFR §200.322- Domestic Preferences for Procurements. (a) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Non-Federal entity should, to the greatest extent practicable under a Federal award, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The requirements of this section must be included in all subawards including all contracts and purchase orders for work or products under this award. 	2 CFR 200 APPENDIX II (L)	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	 (b) For purposes of this section: (1) "Produced in the United States" means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States. (2) "Manufactured products" means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 		
	Additional 2 CFR 200 references & Other Regulations		
None	The Federal awarding agency must establish conflict of interest policies for Federal awards. The Non-Federal entity must disclose in writing any potential conflict of interest to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity in accordance with applicable Federal awarding agency policy.	2 CFR 200.112	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
None	 Contracting with HUB, small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms. (a) The Non-Federal entity must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. (b) Affirmative steps must include: (1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; (2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources; (3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's businesses, and women's business enterprises; (4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; (5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and (6) Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs (b)(1) through (5) of this section. 	2 CFR 200.321	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
>\$10,000	An NFE (Non-Federal Entity) that is a state agency or an agency of a political subdivision of a state, and the NFE's contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act. Applicable NFEs must include a contract provision requiring compliance with this requirement.	2 CFR 200.323	Contractor RFP/IFE Contractor RFQ Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES
	This includes contracts awarded by a state agency or political subdivision of a state and its contractors for certain items, as designated by the EPA, with a purchase price greater than \$10,000. Indian Tribal Governments and nonprofit organizations are not required to comply with		
	this provision. Additional requirements are listed below.		
	Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other Non-Federal entity records pertinent to a Federal award must be retained for a period of three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for Federal awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, as reported to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient. Federal awarding agencies and pass- through entities must not impose any other record retention requirements upon Non- Federal entities. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations. The only exceptions are the following:		
	(a) If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the 3-year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations.		
	(b) When the Non-Federal entity is notified in writing by the Federal awarding agency, cognizant agency for audit, oversight agency for audit, cognizant agency for indirect costs, or pass-through entity to extend the retention period.		
	(c) Records for real property and equipment acquired with Federal funds must be retained for 3 years after final disposition. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms and conditions and regulations.		Contractor RFP/IFE
None	(d) When records are transferred to or maintained by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity, the 3-year retention requirement is not applicable to the Non-Federal entity All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms and conditions and regulations. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations.	2 CFR 200.334	Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
	(e) Records for program income transactions after the period of performance. In some cases, recipients must report program income after the period of performance. Where there is such a requirement, the retention period for the records pertaining to the earning of the program income starts from the end of the Non-Federal entity's fiscal year in which the program income is earned.		Vendors
((f) Indirect cost rate proposals and cost allocations plans. This paragraph applies to the following types of documents and their supporting records: Indirect cost rate computations or proposals, cost allocation plans, and any similar accounting computations of the rate at which a particular group of costs is chargeable (such as computer usage chargeback rates or composite fringe benefit rates).		
	(1) If submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, or other computation is required to be submitted to the Federal Government (or to the pass-through entity) to form the basis for negotiation of the rate, then the 3-year retention period for its supporting records starts from the date of such submission. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations.		
	(2) <i>If not submitted for negotiation.</i> If the proposal, plan, or other computation is not required to be submitted to the Federal Government (or to the pass-through entity) for negotiation purposes, then the 3-year retention period for the proposal, plan, or computation and its supporting records starts from the		

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	end of the fiscal year (or other accounting period) covered by the proposal, plan, or other computation. All records related to ARPA shall be maintained for 5 years per the ARPA terms, conditions, and regulations.		
None	The Federal awarding agency and the Non-Federal entity should, whenever practicable, collect, transmit, and store Federal award-related information in open and machine-readable formats rather than in closed formats or on paper in accordance with applicable legislative requirements. A machine-readable format is a format in a standard computer language (not English text) that can be read automatically by a web browser or computer system. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must always provide or accept paper versions of Federal award-related information to and from the Non-Federal entity upon request. If paper copies are submitted, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must not require more than an original and two copies. When original records are electronic and cannot be altered, there is no need to create and retain paper copies. When original records are paper, electronic versions may be substituted through the use of duplication or other forms of electronic media provided that they are subject to periodic quality control reviews, provide reasonable safeguards against alteration, and remain readable.	2 CFR 200.336	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
None	CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES ENGAGED IN BUSINESS WITH IRAN, SUDAN, OR FOREIGN TERRORIST ORGANIZATION PROHIBITED. A governmental entity may not enter into a governmental contract with a company that is identified on a list prepared and maintained under Section 806.051, 807.051, or 2252.153. The term "foreign terrorist organization" in this paragraph has the meaning assigned to such a term in Section 2252.151(2) of the Texas Government Code.	Texas Government Code 2252.152	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients
>\$100,000	 PROVISION REQUIRED IN CONTRACT. (a) This section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of \$100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 	Texas Government Code 2271	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
For Critical Infrastructure Projects	 PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH CERTAIN FOREIGN-OWNED COMPANIES IN CONNECTION WITH CRITICAL INFRASTRUCTURE. PROHIBITED CONTRACTS. (a) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract or other agreement relating to critical infrastructure in this state with a company: (1) if, under the contract or other agreement, the company would be granted direct or remote access to or control of critical infrastructure in this state, 	Texas Government Code, Title 10, Subtitle F, Chapter 2274.0102	Subrecipients EC 6.1 Awardees

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	excluding access specifically allowed by the governmental entity for product warranty and support purposes; and		
	(2) if the governmental entity knows that the company is:		
	(A) owned by or the majority of stock or other ownership interest of the company is held or controlled by:		
	(i) individuals who are citizens of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated country; or		
	 (ii) a company or other entity, including a governmental entity, that is owned or controlled by citizens of or is directly controlled by the government of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated country; or 		
	(B) headquartered in China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or a designated country.		
	(b) The prohibition described by Subsection (a) applies regardless of whether:		
	(1) the company's or its parent company's securities are publicly traded; or		
	(2) the company or its parent company is listed on a public stock exchange as:		
	(A) a Chinese, Iranian, North Korean, or Russian company; or		
	(B) a company of a designated country.		
None	Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.	42 U.S.C. 6201	Contractor RFP/IFB Subrecipients
None	The Firm agrees that no otherwise qualified individual with disabilities shall, solely by reason of his/her disability, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination, including discrimination in employment, under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.	Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended.	Subrecipients
	ARPA Terms & Conditions		
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 Use of Funds. a. Recipient understands and agrees that the funds disbursed under this award may only be used in compliance with section 603(c) of the Social Security Act (the Act), Treasury's regulations implementing that section, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing. b. Recipient will determine prior to engaging in any project using this assistance that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability to ensure proper planning, management, and completion of such project. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	2. Period of Performance. The period of performance for this award begins on the date hereof and ends on December 31, 2026. As set forth in Treasury's implementing regulations, Recipients may use award funds to cover eligible costs incurred during the period that begins on March 3, 2021, and ends on December 31, 2024.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2;	Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
		Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	3. Reporting. Recipient agrees to comply with any reporting obligations established by Treasury as they relate to this award.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 4. Maintenance of and Access to Records a. Recipient shall maintain records and financial documents sufficient to evidence compliance with section 603(c) of the Act, Treasury's regulations implementing that section, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing. b. The Treasury Office of Inspector General and the Government Accountability Office, or their authorized representatives, shall have the right of access to records (electronic and otherwise) of Recipient in order to conduct audits or other investigations. c. Records shall be maintained by Recipient for a period of five (5) years after all funds have been expended or returned to Treasury, whichever is later. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	5. Pre-award Costs. Pre-award costs, as defined in 2 CFR § 200.458, may not be paid with funding from this award.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	6. Administrative Costs. Recipient may use funds provided under this award to cover both direct and indirect costs.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	7. Cost Sharing. Cost sharing or matching funds are not required to be provided by Recipient.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	8. Conflicts of Interest. Recipient understands and agrees it must maintain a conflict of interest policy consistent with 2 CFR § 200.318(c) and that such conflict of interest policy is applicable to each activity funded under this award. Recipient and subrecipients must disclose in writing to Treasury or the pass-through entity, as	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	appropriate, any potential conflict of interest affecting the awarded funds in accordance with 2 CFR § 200.112.		
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 Compliance with Applicable Law and Regulations. Recipient agrees to comply with the requirements of section 603 of the Act, regulations adopted by Treasury pursuant to section 603(f) of the Act, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing. Recipient also agrees to comply with all other applicable federal statutes, regulations, and executive orders, and Recipient shall provide for such compliance by other parties in any agreements it enters into with other parties relating to this award. Federal regulations applicable to this award include, without limitation, the following: Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 CFR Part 200, other than such provisions as Treasury may determine are inapplicable to this Award and subject to such exceptions as may be otherwise provided by Treasury. Subpart F – Audit Requirements of the Uniform Guidance, implementing the Single Audit Act, shall apply to this award. Universal Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM), 2 CFR Part 25, pursuant to which the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 170, pursuant to which the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 170 is hereby incorporated by reference. NOMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspersion (Non-procurement), 2 CFR Part 180, subpart B) that the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 19. V. OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmenting regulation at 31 CFR Part 19. V. Recipient Integrity CPA Part 200, Appendix XII to Part 200 is hereby incorporated by reference. Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace, 31 CFR Part 20. (Subrecipient Only) Vi. New Restrictions on Lobbying, 31 CFR Part 21. Viii. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act o	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	ii. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, familial status, or disability;		
	iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance;		
	iv. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and Treasury's implementing regulations at 31 CFR Part 23, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of age in programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; and		
	v. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under programs, activities, and services provided or made available by state and local governments or instrumentalities or agencies thereto.		
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	10. Remedial Actions. In the event of Recipient's noncompliance with section 603 of the Act, other applicable laws, Treasury's implementing regulations, guidance, or any reporting or other program requirements, Treasury may impose additional conditions on the receipt of a subsequent tranche of future award funds, if any, or take other available remedies as set forth in 2 CFR § 200.339. In the case of a violation of section 603(c) of the Act regarding the use of funds, previous payments shall be subject to recoupment as provided in section 603(e) of the Act.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	11. Hatch Act. Recipient agrees to comply, as applicable, with requirements of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328), which limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by this federal assistance.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	12. False Statements. Recipient understands that making false statements or claims in connection with this award is a violation of federal law and may result in criminal, civil, or administrative sanctions, including fines, imprisonment, civil damages and penalties, debarment from participating in federal awards or contracts, and/or any other remedy available by law.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	13. Publications. Any publications produced with funds from this award must display the following language: "This project [is being] [was] supported, in whole or in part, by federal award number [enter project FAIN] awarded to [name of Recipient] by the U.S. Department of the Treasury."	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 14. Debts Owed the Federal Government. a. Any funds paid to Recipient (1) in excess of the amount to which Recipient is finally determined to be authorized to retain under the terms of this award; (2) that are determined by the Treasury Office of Inspector General to have been misused; or (3) that are determined by Treasury to be subject to a repayment obligation pursuant to section 603(e) of the Act and have not been repaid by Recipient shall constitute a debt to the federal government. b. Any debts determined to be owed the federal government must be paid promptly by Recipient. A debt is delinquent if it has not been paid by the date specified in Treasury's initial written demand for payment, unless other satisfactory arrangements have been made or if the Recipient knowingly or improperly retains funds that are a debt as defined in paragraph 14(a). Treasury will take any actions available to it to collect such a debt. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 15. Disclaimer. a. The United States expressly disclaims any and all responsibility or liability to Recipient or third persons for the actions of Recipient or third persons resulting in death, bodily injury, property damages, or any other losses resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any other losses resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any contract, or subcontract under this award. b. The acceptance of this award by Recipient does not in any way establish an agency relationship between the United States and Recipient. 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Subrecipients
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	 16. Protections for Whistleblowers. a. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, Recipient may not discharge, demote, or otherwise discriminate against an employee in reprisal for disclosing to any of the list of persons or entities provided below, information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of gross mismanagement of a federal contract or grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal contract or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal contract (including the competition for or negotiation of a contract) or grant. b. The list of persons and entities referenced in the paragraph above includes the following: i. A member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress; ii. An Inspector General; iii. The Government Accountability Office; iv. A Treasury employee responsible for contract or grant oversight or management; v. An authorized official of the Department of Justice or other law enforcement agency; vi. A court or grand jury; or 	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors

THRESHOLD	PROVISION	CITATION	PROVISION APPLIES TO
	vii. A management official or other employee of Recipient, contractor, or subcontractor who has the responsibility to investigate, discover, or address misconduct.c. Recipient shall inform its employees in writing of the rights and remedies provided under this section, in the predominant native language of the workforce.		
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	17. Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States. Pursuant to Executive Order 13043, 62 FR 19217 (Apr. 18, 1997), Recipient should encourage its contractors to adopt and enforce on-the-job seat belt policies and programs for their employees when operating company-owned, rented or personally owned vehicles.	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors
ARPA Terms, Conditions, & Records	18. Reducing Text Messaging While Driving. Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, 74 FR 51225 (Oct. 6, 2009), Recipient should encourage its employees, subrecipients, and contractors to adopt and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving, and Recipient should establish workplace safety policies to decrease accidents caused by distracted drivers	Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2; Section 602(b), 603(b) and/or 603(c) as applicable	Contractor RFP/IFB Contractor RFQ Subrecipients Vendors

Exhibit C – Prevailing Wage Decision

Latest wage decision to be inserted

To be inserted

Exhibit E – Insurance Certificate

To be inserted

Exhibit F – Performance, and Payment Bonds

To be inserted

Exhibit G – Eligibility Verification (SAM.gov)

This project is funded by Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds which requires all contractors and vendors not be debarred according to SAM.gov and the Texas State Comptroller's office.

Verification of SAM.gov Status

Respondent must not be suspended or debarred at the time of the proposal response submittal. The proposal response package must include the following:

1. Respondent must complete and submit the "Federal Debarment/Suspension Status Certification" form with the proposal response submittal. The "Federal Debarment/Suspension Status Certification" is located on the next page herein.

To be provided

Exhibit H – Certificate of Interested Parties (Form 1295)

To be provided